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» Actual production 1,253 and sales 1,195 thousandrts of
fertilizers;

» Actual total income of Petrokemija, Plc. HRK 2,96% million;
Petrokemija Group HRK 2,973.0 million;

» Actual profit of Petrokemija, Plc. HRK 107,8 million (3.6% of total
revenues); Petrokemija Group HRK 106.5 million;

e Invested funds HRK 44.1 million;

* Number of employees of Petrokemija, Plc. 2,301; Rekemija Group
2,312.

Actual profit / loss
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MANAGEMENT BOARD REPORT ON THE STATE OF THE
COMPANY FOR Jan — Dec 2011 PERIOD

1. ACTUAL FINANCIAL RESULTS OF PETROKEMIJA, Plc.

The total income of Petrokemija, Plc. in 2011 wd8kH2,969.6 million, total expenses were
HRK 2,861.8 million and the reported profit in busss operations was HRK 107.8 million or
3.6% of total revenues. The total yearly income waseased by 29.6% and total expenses by
17.9% on the previous year.

Greater actual operating income and expenses cecparthe same period last year reflects the
growth of in- and output prices and flexibility adapting the production and sales to market
demand. In 2011, Petrokemija Plc. increased pramlucby 0.3% and sales by 0.6% in
comparison with the previous year.

The income from domestic sales increased by 18.B&otlaat from export sales by 37.6% in
2011 in comparison with the year 2010.

The EBITDA indicator (earnings before interest,eésxdepreciation and amortization) is HRK
233.2 million in the positive. The EBITDA was HRKMmillion negative in 2010.

(HRK 000)
Jan- Dec Jan- Dec
2011 2010 Difference % change
Operating income 2.945.053 2.261.446 683.607 30,23%
Operating expense 2.805.899 2.364.792 441.107 18,65%
EBITDA * 233.216 -4.021 237.237 0,00%
Amortization 94.062 99.325 -5.263 -5,30%
Net financial income (expenses) -31.328 -32.760 1.432 -4,37%
Net extraordinary income
(expenses) 0 0 0
Profit / loss / before taxation 107.825 -136.106 243.931 0,00%
Non-current assets 767.561 823.440 -55.879 -6,79%
Current assets 879.261 710.620 168.641 23,73%
Shareholders' equity 765.109 657.284 107.825 16,40%
Non-current liabilities 94.197 76.754 17.443 22,73%
Current liabilities 787.516 800.022 -12.506 -1,56%

* EBITDA= profit before interest, taxation depretitan and amortization

The data clearly show that the growth of income argense was influenced by numerous
factors — significant rise in input and output pa¢ adjusting the product range to market
demand and structure, synchronizing production @tipa with logistics, selection of raw
materials of good quality and origin so as to mketEU customs requirements, etc. The actual
yearly profit, after two years of loss is a sigedfint breakthrough in business result, partly due to
a more favourable ratio of in- and output pricesilevpartly due to positive effects of time
difference in the growth of in- and output prices.

Despite the significant rise in gas price and frsgrice of basic raw materials for fertilizer
production in the world market, price relations sverstablished on the routes that ensured a
positive balance of revenues and expendituressmbas activities.
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During 2011, a significant share of sales in expevas achieved, in order to ensure positive
financial result, fill in the capacity, ensure donity of production and maintain the liquidity.

Financial indicators reported for fourth quarted aamulatively for the whole period of 2011:

Jan- Sept Oct — Dec Jan- Dec
2011 2011 2011
Operating income 2.234.549 710.504 2.945.053
Operating expense 2.096.668 709.231 2.805.899
EBITDA * 211.420 21.796 233.216
Amortization 73.539 20.523 94.062
Net financial income (expenses) -23.407 -7.921 -31.328
Net extraordinary income (expenses) 0 0 0
Profit / loss / before taxation 114.474 -6.649 107.825

* EBITDA= profit before interest, taxation depretitan and amortization

Actual operating profit during the fourth quarteasvl.3 million, but there was also a financial

loss of 7.9 million, due to high interest, issuisgmmercial papers, negative effect of

revaluation adjustment of non-tangible financiateds of the Company and exchange rates.
Actual loss before tax in the fourth quarter is HRI& million.

Actual Total income and expenses
January to December period (2009-2011)
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In comparison to the actual result for 2010, thveas in 2011 a positive difference of HRK 243.9
million due to improved market trends and intersalings. Sales prices of fertilizers were
increased in line with the rise of input prices dimel evaluation of the market.

Because of positive changes in sales prices ara$ safucture of the product, the Company
operating income in 2011 increased by 30.2%, ardabing expense by 18.7% as compared to
the previous year.

Due to the market situation, a part of facilitieasahalted in the second half of 2009 and this
problem was carried over into 2012. For a pareef materials and products the improvement of
market position is still uncertain. The open prablef exceptional growth in the price of gas,
which is transferred from the European energy furthrket, is here particularly pronounced.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME OF PETROKEMIJA, Plc.KUTINA

(HRK 000)
Petrokemija, Plc. Petrokemija, Plc.
POSITION Jan-Dec 2011 Jan-Dec 2010

Total operating income 2.945.053 2.261.446
Total operating expenses 2.805.899 2.364.792
PROFIT / LOSS FROM ORDINARY

ACTIVITIES 139.154 -103.346
Total financial income 24.596 29.176
Total financial expenses 55.925 61.936
PROFIT / LOSS FROM FINANCIAL

ACTIVITIES -31.329 -32.760
TOTAL INCOME 2.969.649 2.290.622
TOTAL EXPENSES 2.861.824 2.426.728
Profit/loss before taxation 107.825 -136.106
Profit tax

Total comprehensive loss 107.825 -136.106

BALANCE SHEET OF PETROKEMIJA, Plc.KUTINA

(HRK 000)
Petrokemija,Plc. Petrokemija, Plc.

POSITION 31.12. 2011 31.12.2010.
Total long-term assets 767.561 823.440
Total short-term assets 876.527 708.857
Prepaid costs and accrued income 2.734 1.763
TOTAL ASSETS 1.646.822 1.534.060
Total capital 765.110 657.284
Long-term liabilities 94.197 76.754
Total short-term liabilities 784.052 796.588
Accruals and deferred income 3.463 3.434
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1.646.822 1.534.060

Due to gas balancing in winter months in the gasdesy of Republic of Croatia, Petrokemija
used the fertilizer production standstill in Jaryud011, but also in 2012 for annual facilities
overhaul. The forecast for the long-awaited impletagon of gas market in Croatia in 2011, by
including a new supply route and potentially newiers, have not been fully realized.
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Sufficient gas volumes are a good basis for optinyearly schedule of fertilizers production
and deliveries in 2012, and the price will dependh® European gas market and USD exchange
rate.

The domestic demand for fertilizers is connecteith Wie situation in agricultural production, i.e.
with the price ratio of production materials andighed products in agriculture (low prices of
basic agricultural crops generate the extensiveimesse of agro-technical measures and vice
versa). As regards their price, imports of feréitig were still moderately unattractive — in 2011,
approx. 45 thousand tons were imported, which makgsoximately 10% market share, with a
portion of those products not normally producedPleyrokemija.

A trend of instability of input-output prices comtied in the reported period. Generally, the
prices of raw materials in world markets were gedijurising, while the gas price in domestic
market was growing pronouncedly through quartecgomling to the formula. This growth
reflects the pricing methodology applied — aftez tigreed (the so-called oil-linked) formula.
The gas price growth trend is estimated to continude first quarter of 2012 and stabilize in
the second quarter of 2012.

The continuing positive trend in 2012 year couldcbenpromised by a potential new wave of
instability in demand and prices in the global nedrk

Actual operating income and expenses
January to December period (2009-2011)
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Financial income was by 15.7% lower, and finanexdense by 9.7% lower than in the previous
year. The HRK 31.3 million loss from financial adties was by 4.4% lower than the previous
year. Foreign exchange gains accounted for 80%iraomaine from interest and other financial
income for 20% share in the financial income.

Foreign exchange losses have 40% share in finaexmgnses, while 60% share is made up of
interest and other financial expenses. Althoughinherest rates are lower than in the previous
period, a disturbing trend is opened up by a potentialrioma crisis in the Eurozone in 2012,
which is directly transferred to the terms of finarg in Croatia.

Since 2009, Petrokemija, Plc. has been implememtipgpgram of issuing commercial bills (up

to HRK 100 million) through Privredna banka Zagtelprovide for short-term working capital.
During the reporting period, the liabilities on acorcial bills were fulfilled regularly and in

Petrokemija d.d. ANNUAL REPORT January — December 2011 5



December 2011 a new,tiﬁranche was issued. In 2012, HRK 34 million of coencial bills are
maturing in May and another HRK 47.2 million in $spber.

Actual financial income and expenses
January to December period (2009-2011)
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1.1 CHANGE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In line with Article 13, pt. 2, of the AccountingcAand International Accounting Standard 27,
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemenesstiments into daughter companies in 100%
ownership of Petrokemija, Plc. is accounted bycibst method.

As the Company booked the investment by equity @ttog method, on 31 December 2011,
upon a decision of the Board, a correction of thexe to the value of initial investment cost was
carried out.

The effect of this change in Accounting Policy hassignificant impact on reported financial
result of Petrokemija, Plc. and Petrokemija Grong #hey amount to HRK 1.8 million.

2. ACTUAL FINANCIAL RESULT OF PETROKEMIJA GROUP
After consolidation of financial results of Petrokiga, Plc. and its daughter companies —

Restoran Petrokemija, Ltd. Kutina, Petrokemija,.Libvi Sad and Petrokemija, Ltd. Novo
Mesto, the financial result is as follows:

e Total income HRK 2,973.0 million
» Total expenses HRK 2,866.5 million
» Profit before taxation RK 106.55 million
¢ Income tax HRK 0.06 million
* Profit after taxation HRK 106.49 million

It is evident from the Profit and Loss and BalaBteet tables that the daughter companies have
no significant influence on the Petrokemija Grousibess result.
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Business results of daughter companies in 100% owwrship:

(HRK 000)
Actual Actual Ind
POSITION Jan-Dec 2011 | Jan-Dec 2010 2/3
1 2 3 4
RESTORAN PETROKEMIJA, Ltd.
TOTAL INCOME 2.161 2.021 106,9
TOTAL EXPENSES 2.155 2.018 106,8
GROSS PROFIT /LOSS 6 3 200,0
PETROKEMIJA Novi Sad, Ltd.
TOTAL INCOME 78.370 54,724 143,2
TOTAL EXPENSES 77.819 52.886 147,1
GROSS PROFIT 551 1.838 30,0
PETROKEMIJA, Ltd. Novo Mesto
TOTAL INCOME 840 4.465 18,8
TOTAL EXPENSES 832 4.459 18,7
GROSS PROFIT 8 6 133,3

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(HRK 000)
Petrokemija Petrokemija
POSITION Group Group
Jan-Dec 2011 Jan-Dec 2010

Total operating income 2.948.348 2.266.950
Total operating expenses 2.810.416 2.368.814
PROFIT/LOSS FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES 137.932 -101.864
Total financial income 24.695 27.662
Total financial expenses 56.078 61.720
PROFIT/LOSS FROM FINANCIAL
ACTIVITIES -31.383 -34.058
TOTAL INCOME 2.973.043 2.294.612
TOTAL EXPENSES 2.866.494 2.430.534
Profit/Loss before taxation 106.549 -135.922
Profit tax 61 184
Profit/Loss after taxation 106.488 -136.106
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - fourth quarter 2011

(HRK 000)
Petrokemija Group
Jan-Sept Jan-Dec
POZICIJA 2011 Oct-Dec 2011 2011
Total operating income 2.238.728 709.620 2.948.348
Total operating expenses 2.100.493 709.923 2.810.416
PROFIT/LOSS FROM
ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 138.235 -303 137.932
Total financial income 19.530 5.165 24.695
Total financial expenses 43.023 13.055 56.078
PROFIT/LOSS FROM
FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES -23.493 -7.890 -31.383
TOTAL INCOME 2.258.258 714.785 2.973.043
TOTAL EXPENSES 2.143.516 722.978 2.866.494
Profit/Loss before taxation 114.742 -8.193 106.549
Profit tax 23 38 61
Profit/Loss after taxation 114.719 -8.231 106.488
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(HRK 000)
Petrokemija Petrokemija
POSITION Group Group
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Total long-term assets 761.843 814.813
Total short-term assets 878.243 713.791
Prepaid costs and accrued income 2.734 1.773
TOTAL ASSETS 1.642.820 1.530.377
Total capital 763.875 657.013
Long-term liabilities 94.197 76.754
Total short-term liabilities 781.285 793.176
Accruals and diferred income 3.463 3.434
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1.642.820 1.530.377
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3. INVESTMENTS

Actual investments in 2011 amounted to HRK 44.1liom| approximately HRK 0.2 million
over the previous year's amount. Due to limitedifyra trend of relatively low investments from
earlier years was continued in 2011. A more intensivestment activity is anticipated in 2012.
Out of the said amount, HRK 43.6 million was inesktn the parent company — fertilizer
production and its ancillary services and HRK Oiiom in other production units.

Actual investments
January to December period (2009-2011)

60.000 55:178

(000 HRK)

Jan-Dec 2009 Jan-Dec 2010 Jan-Dec 2011

The technical structure of investments is depiatetie following chart:

Actual structure of investments
January to December period 2011

10% 1% 13%

76%

O Buildings @ Domestic equipment O Import equipment O Intangible assets

In the next few years, increased investment is $s&r§ in environmental protection projects,
improvement of energy efficiency and condition atifities. However, the extensiveness of
investment will continue to be limited by availalileancial resources.
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4. ACTUAL PRODUCTION AND SALES

Actual Production in the January to December 20driod:

« fertilizers 1,253.1 thousand tons
+ clay-based products 23.6 thousand tons
« TGUS products 1.0 thousand tons

In line with the actual production plan, availablgplies and market circumstances, the sales
results were as follows:

« fertilizers 1,194.thousand tons
+ clay-based products 23.4 thousandsto
* TGUS products (+chemicals) 5.5 thousand tons

Actual sales of fertilizers
January to December period (2009-2011)
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The actual total sales of fertilizers is approxietatat the same level as the previous year, with
certain changes in the structure of the produchgbaDespite the 5.3% increase in domestic
sales volumes, there was no increase in the stiaslenoestic sales in the total volumes. The
sales of clay-based products were by 0.5% highetlawse of liquid fertilizers and chemicals by

18.7% higher in comparison to the previous yeamnweier, these products had no significant
impact on total business result of Petrokemija, R&cthe Carbon Black Plant is temporarily shut
down for market reasons, there were no sales bbodblack.
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5. ORGANIZATION CHART AND HUMAN RESOURCES
In 2011, there was no significant change in theteng organization chart.

Petrokemija Group is made up of Petrokemija, Platind as the parent company and its
daughter companies:

- Restoran Petrokemija, Ltd. Kutina,

- Petrokemija, Ltd. Novi Sad and

- Petrokemija, Ltd. Novo Mesto.

BOARD MEMBER

BOARD MEMBER
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As of December 31, 2011, Petrokemija, Plc. had 2 @@ployees and its daughter companies,
members of the Petrokemija Group had 11 employeesh makes a total of 2,312 employees.
The high qualification structure corresponds to toenplexity of the production and other
systems in place in the Company.

During 2011, the number of employees in Petrokerfje. was reduced by 45 or 1.9%. Workers
from the facilities that have been temporarily Isthl have been deployed to work in other
organization units.

The management structure has changed with the rappenmt of new members of the Board on
15 June 2011, for a period of three years. Ther@tzan of the Board has been doing his term
since May 2010. Two new board members were appmbiiiar finance and commerce, while the
current board member for production and technicavities was re-appointed.

EMPLOYEES BY QUALIFICATION:

NK DR, MR, VSS
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PK VvS§s
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The employee structure by profession indicates Bledtokemija has maintenance of production
and ancillary facilities in place, as well as otlseipporting departments such as bagging and
dispatch which receives and dispatches up to 2J0omitons a year of raw materials and
finished products.

EMPLOYEES BY PROFESSION:
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6. PETROKEMIJA, Plc. SHARE TRADING AND PRICE MOVEME NTS

The share of Petrokemija, Plc. is quoted in thadadf Zagreb Stock Exchange Market. The
nominal value of share is HRK 270.00.

Petrokemija's share value was HRK 165.44 at theoéridecember 2010, while on December
30, 2011, its average price was HRK 193.31 (16.§ré&wth). The share turnover at the Zagreb
Stock Exchange in 2011 was HRK 93.6 millianith price fluctuations mainly influenced by the

global financial movements, specific charactersstdé the Croatian capital market and actual
financial results of Petrokemija.

PETROKEMIJA d.d. SHARE PRICE MOVEMENT
for January to December 2011 period
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7. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - JANUARY TO DECEMBER 2 011 REPORT

Introduction

Petrokemija, Plc. with its core production of fezers, carbon black and bentonite clay-based
products, has a significant impact on environmé&he environmental management system of
the Company is in compliance with, and certifiecaiagt the I1ISO 14001:2004 standard
requirements. The overall goal of Petrokemija isnprove efficiency of the environmental
management system in order to achieve a more e#eehvironmental protection and pollution
prevention.

Major environmental aspects are pollutant emisstonair and water and waste management.
Detailed reports on environmental protection andgaot of Petrokemija's production on
environment are annually made in accordance wehréigulations. What follows is a summary
of actual indicators of environmental managemengémuary to December 2011 period by main
environmental aspects.

1. Air pollutant emissions and air quality in the Kutina area

Greenhouse gases, carbon dioxide and nitrous ¢&@gand NO) have the largest share (about
99 %) in the total emissions into air from Petrokamrhe other typical pollutant emissions are
ammonia-NH, sulphur dioxide-S¢) nitrogen dioxide-N@ gaseous fluorides-HF and dust.

In line with the regulations, emission monitoringsndone by individual or periodical measuring
throughout the calendar year, except for measursr@nair emissions from Power Plant and
Ammonia Plant that were continuous. Air quality monng in the Kutina area is continuous, by
means of automatic and semi-automatic methods.

In the January to December 2011 period, the restiig quality monitoring at six local network
measuring stations for the seven pollutants {N&3, NO,, H,S, HF, smoke and sediment),
recorded exceedings of 24-hour limit for:

a) ammonia:
- in four cases at K3 measuring station, threesaseh at K2 and K6 measuring stations and
one case at K5 measuring station

b) nitrogen dioxide-as NO
- in two cases at K2 measuring station.

The number of recorded exceedings by measuringpisgain 2011 was not higher than the
number of permitted exceedings, so the air quaktyablished by the local network measurings
was f' category (clean or slightly polluted air).

2. Water management

In the January to December 2011 period, improverewater protection was achieved as
shown by the results of factor kom current samples as compared to the averag@ld’.
(Figure 1).
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Figure 1.

Factor k1 from current samples at control point "D" in sewerage
system, January to December 2011
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In the January to December period of 2011, the wopsion of raw water was 2.6 % lower than
the 2010 consumption (Figure 2.).
Figure 2.

Consumption of raw water, January to December 2011
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3. Waste management

The generated production waste (e.g. calcium fli&riwas regularly disposed at the
phosphogypsum disposal pond, in accordance witlvahd permit. Other kinds of waste were
handed over to licensed collecting and processimgpanies.

8. MAIN FEATURES OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES IN THE NEXT PERIOD

Business Plan for 2011 anticipated a profit of HBR million. Achieved positive financial
result of HRK 107.8 million, significantly exceedede planned projection. Current market
situation - the parity of price of most importam@iw materials and price of fertilizers in the
domestic and world markets suggest caution in ptedj operating results in 2012.

In 2011, certain positive developments were acliemethe domestic market, which can be

interpreted as a sign of market recovery, despite grolonged drought that has taken on
proportions of natural disaster. Part of the pesitiesults can be interpreted as an effect of time
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difference in the growth of in- and output pricésnployment and wages are under control; a
part of the plants is still shut-down for markeasens and the current liquidity is maintained
with support of commercial banks, Croatian Bank R&construction and Development and by
issuance of commercial papers.

During the reporting period, there was continuoperation of plants needed to ensure sufficient
volumes of fertilizers to meet the market demanke Emphasis will continue to be on the
domestic and neighboring markets, where Petrokemijeaditionally present, but strong sales
activity will be continued in the global marketptdl'he last quarter of 2011 was used for higher
production in order to secure transitional invel@®ito be delivered during overhaul in January
2012.

Assessment of long-term business prospects in dlhewing years is made difficult by the
fluctuation in global flows and unstable parity eriergy, fertilizers and food prices in world
markets.

9. SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL RISKS AT THE TURN OF THE Y EAR 2011 /2012

The overall considerations of Petrokemija's bugngasition in 2012 include a number of
parameters whose impact is difficult to estimateawdver, in view of the present market
situation, a special attention should be givengksras follows:

« Petrokemija’s Plc. result is highly dependent om mmovements of fertilizer and their raw
material price in the world market, the exchange & HRK against USD and EUR and
their interrelations.

« A contract on gas supply was signed with INA Indistnafte, Plc. Zagreb, i.e. their
daughter company Prirodni plin, Ltd. for 2012/20T3e method of price calculation is
slightly more favorable than the previous one, &tilt contains a formula for quarterly
pricing of gas linked to the movement of oil protduprices in the world market, while the
monthly price in HRK is linked to USD exchange raklis implies an additional exposure
to foreign exchange rate of HRK and energy pricetilations in the world market. The
price of fuel oil, which is included in the formulhas risen significantly in first half of
2011.

* The year 2011 saw the recovery of fertilizer piicehe global markets and this has made
the profit. However, due to the high cost of tragation, the long-term stronghold of
Petrokemija are the domestic and closer marketeighboring countries.

* The fluctuations of raw material prices presentasan the world market, will have impact
on material costs in the next period.

» High costs of working capital — because of inigint own working capital, comparatively
high interest rates and necessary credit resoaesresult of extended maturity payment
period of sold goods in the domestic market wilhtbaue to be present in the following
period. A part of the short-term liabilities hasehetransformed into long-term liabilities
(loans and reservation).

» Positive developments achieved in the operatiorikerfirst three quarters of 2011 opened
certain optimism regarding the future trend of hass. The fall in prices in the last quarter
eroded the expected financial performance and amsulthe outlines of a new wave of
global economic and financial crisis.

« The overall positive global effects of the currgear may be compromised in 2012 by a
possible new cycle of global crisis, growth of catifon, stagnation of Croatian
agriculture in the autumn 2011 (drought effects) apring 2012 season as well as growth
of gas prices on the European and local markets.
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10. STATEMENT ON APPLICATION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In accordance with the provisions of Articles 250a, 250b and 272p of the Companies Act (OG
152/11 consolidated text), the Management Board of Petrokemija Plc., the company whose
shares are traded on the regulated securities market, is issuing this statement on the application
of the Corporate Governance Code of the Zagreb Stock Exchange in 2011. The Management and
the Supervisory Board of Petrokemija, Plc. completed the annual questionnaire on the
application of the Code of Corporate Governance of the Zagreb Stock Exchange for 2011 and
published it on the website of the Zagreb Stock Exchange, HANFA and Petrokemija, Plc.,
whereby the obligation under Article 272.p of this Act has been met.

11. STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

In line with Articles 407 through 410 of Capital Market Act (OG 88/08, 146/08 and 74/09), the
Managing Board of Petrokemija, Plc.Kutina, A. Vukovar 4, make a

Statement on Management Liability

Financial reports were made in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). Financial reports are also compliant to Croatian Accounting Act, effective at the time of
issuing of the reports.

Financial reports for the January 1 to December 31,2011 period., make an exact and true account
of the Company financial state and the business and cash flow results, in compliance with the
applicable accounting standards.

This report may contain certain statements relating to the future business of Petrokemija, Plc.and
Petrokemija Group, their strategy, plans and intentions which express a certain degree of
uncertainty. They reflect the current position of Petrokemija with regard to risks, uncertainties
and assumptions about the future. Currently, the results, effects and achievements of
Petrokemija, Plc. or Petrokemija Group are heavily dependent on a large number of factors
which may influence their being quite different from the originally set ones.

Chairman gf¢Petrokemija Management Board

Member of Retrokemija Management Board

Antonija Pe éevié-GaW,

U

Member of Petrokemija Management Board

Nenad Marinovyié "
ﬁg/// g

Member of Petrokemija Management Board
Tomislav Seletkovié

i -,

Encl: - Annual financial report of the company - GFI-POD Petrokemija d.d.
- Annual financial report of the Petrokemija Group - GFI-POD Petrokemija Group
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BALANCE SHEET
asat 31.12.2011.

Petrokemija d.d.

A) RECIVABLES FOR SUBSCRIBED BUT NOT PAID-IN CAPIT AL 001
B) LONG-TERM ASSETS (003+010+020+029+033) 002 823.440.193| 767.561.009
I. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (004 do 009) 003 8.056.658 7.666.622
1. Expense for development 004
2. Concessions, patents, licences, trade and service marks, software and other rights 005 6.614.968 5.691.975
3. Goodwill 006
4. Advances for intangible assets 007
5. Intangible assets in progress 008 1.441.690 1.974.647
6. Other intangible assets 009
Il. TANGIBLE ASSETS (011 do 019) 010 784.383.239| 737.831.972
1. Land 011 49.419.192 49.411.756
2. Buildings 012 320.599.498| 303.807.515
3. Plant and equipment 013 366.697.839| 354.706.148
4. Tools, plant inventory and transportation assets 014 13.540.974 12.502.844
5. Biological assets 015
6. Advances for tangible assets 016 3.081.885
7. Tangibal assets in progres 017 33.653.876 13.828.059
8. Other tangible assets 018 471.860 493.765
9. Investments in real estates 019
IIl. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS (021 do 028) 020 31.000.296 22.062.415
1. Investments (shares) in related companies 021 10.736.317 7.770.691
2. Loans given to realted companies 022
3. Participating interest (shares) 023 12.805.351 10.766.762
4. Loans given to companies with participating interest 024
5. Investment in securities 025
6. Loans given, deposits and similar assets 026 3.278.289
7. Other long-term financial assets 027
8. Investments accounted for using the equity method 028 4.180.339 3.524.962
IV. TRADE RECEIVABLES (030 do 032) 029 0 0
1. Receivables from related companies 030
2. Receivables for sales on loan 031
3. Other receivables 032
V. DIFERRED TAX ASSETS 033
C) SHORT-TERM ASSETS (035+043+050+058) 034 708.857.331| 876.528.328
I. INVENTORIES (036 do 042) 035 478.795.342|  653.760.359
1. Raw and other material 036 226.957.336| 307.535.935
2. Work in progress 037 23.553.044 41.135.157
3. Finished products 038 219.745.764| 300.391.370
4. Merchandise inventory 039 3.788.011 4.261.657
5. Advances for inventories 040 4.751.187 436.240
6. Long-term assets intended for sale 041
7. Biological assets 042
Il. TRADE RECEIVABLES (044 do 049) 043 205.175.357| 195.200.328
1. Receivables from related companies 044 4.617.071
2. Receivables from customers (buyers) 045 87.154.900 147.436.701
3. Receivables from participating interest 046
4. Receivables from employees and members 047 26.293 21.316
5. Receivables from state and other institutions 048 117.334.954 39.789.121
6. Other receivbles 049 659.210 3.336.119
lIl. SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS (051 do 057) 050 3.548.085 20.212.233
1. Investments (shares) in related companies 051
2. Loans given to realted companies 052
3. Participating interest (shares) 053
4. Loans given to companies with participating interest 054
5. Investment in securities 055 3.548.085 5.151.393
6. Loans given, depsits and similar assets 056 15.060.840
7. Other financial assets 057
IV. CASH IN BANK AND ON HAND 058 21.338.547 7.355.408
D) PREPAID EXPESES AND ACCRUED INCOME 059 1.763.118 2.733.794
E) TOTAL ASSETS (001+002+034+059) 060 1.534.060.642| 1.646.823.131
F) OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 061 141.203.382| 186.462.200




LIABILITIES

A) CAPITAL AND RESERVES (063+064+065+071+072+075+078) 062 657.284.333|  765.109.515
|. SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL 063 902.101.590 902.101.590
Il. CAPITAL RESERVES 064
Il. RESERVES FROM PROFIT (066+067-068+069+070) 065 0 0
1. Legal reserves 066
2. Reserve for treasury shares 067
3. Treasury shares and invesment (deductable item) 068
4. Statutory reserves 069
5. Other reserve 070
IV. REVALUATION RESERVES 071
V. RETAINED EARNINGS OR LOSS CARRIED FORWARD (073-074) 072 -108.711.297| -244.817.257
1. Retained earning 073
2. Loss carried forward 074 108.711.297| 244.817.257
VI. PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE BUSINESS YEAR (076-077) 075 -136.105.960| 107.825.182
1. Profit for the year 076 107.825.182
2. Loss for the year 077 136.105.960
VII. MINORITY INTEREST 078
B) PROVISIONS (080 do 082) 079 14.532.303 14.197.080
1. Provisions for pensions, severance pay and similar labilites 080 12.282.303 12.112.252
2. Provisions for tax liabilities 081
3. Other provisions 082 2.250.000 2.084.828
C) LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (084 do 092) 083 62.222.222 80.000.000
1. Liabilities to related companies 084
2. Liabilities for loans, deposits and similar 085
3. Liabilities to banks and other financial institutions 086 62.222.222 80.000.000
4. Liabilities for advances 087
5. Liabilities to suppliers 088
6. Liabilities for securities 089
7. Liabilities to companies with participating interest 090
8. Other long-term liabilities 091
9. Deferred tax liability 092
D) SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES (094 do 105) 093 796.587.598| 784.052.266
1. Liabilities to related companies 094 4.520.449 3.492.737
2. Liabilities for loans, deposits and similar 095 44.000.000 12.000.000
3. Liabilities to banks and other financial institutions 096 310.017.961| 295.722.222
4. Liabilities for advances 097 56.326.281 25.990.680
5. Liabilities to suppliers 098 334.923.497| 331.324.720
6. Liabilities for securities 099 22.125.296 81.176.464
7. Liabilities to companies with participating interest 100
8. Liabilities to employees 101 13.328.610 13.613.928
9. Liabilities for taxes, contributions and other payments 102 8.172.172 9.921.035
10. Liabilities as per share in result 103
11. Liabilities as per long-tem assets intended for sales 104
12. Other short-term liabilities 105 3.173.332 10.810.480
E) ACCRUED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME 106 3.434.186 3.463.270
F) TOTAL LIABILITIES (062+079+083+093+106) 107 1.534.060.642| 1.646.822.131
G) OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 108 141.203.382| 186.462.200

APPENDIX TO BALANCE SHEET (to be completed by compa nies that prepare consolidated financial statements )

A) CAPITAL AND RESERVES

1. Credited to parent company capital owners

109

2. Credited to minority interest

110

Note 1.: The appendix to the balance sheet i to be filled if consolidated financial statements are to be compiled.




PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
for the period 01.01.2011.to 31.12.2011.

Petrokemija d.d.

|. OPERATING REVENUES (112+113) 111 2.261.446.088| 2.945.052.975
1. Sales revenues 112 2.220.116.050( 2.895.874.255
2. Other operating revenues 113 41.330.038 49.178.720
Il. OPERATING EXPENSES (115+116+120+124+125+126+129+130) 114 2.364.792.422| 2.805.899.334
1. Changes in value of work in progress and fin  ished products 115 -36.074.972| -99.921.361
2. Material costs (117 do 119) 116 1.976.139.343| 2.483.206.663
a) Cost of raw and production materials 117 1.858.059.405| 2.358.138.963
b) Cost of goods sold 118 18.146.462 7.814.172
c) Other external costs 119 99.933.476| 117.253.528
3. Employees costs (121 do 123) 120 216.077.242| 232.886.938
a) Net salaries and wages 121 135.862.050( 145.820.680
b) Costs for taxes and contributions from salaries 122 48.457.432|  52.831.890
¢) Contributions on salaries 123 31.757.760|  34.234.368
4. Depreciation 124 99.324.522|  94.062.762
5. Other costs 125 83.707.233 86.197.728
6. Value adjustments (127+128) 126 9.902.565 4.969.385
a) of long-term assets (except for financial assets) 127 35.323 108.297
b) of short-term assets (except for financial assets) 128 9.867.242 4.861.088
7. Provisions 129 15.716.489 4.497.219
8. Other operating expenses 130
I1l. FINANCIAL REVENUES (132 do 136) 131 28.232.915( 24.516.070
1. Interest, exchange rate flucutations, divid  ends and similar from associated companies 132 1.699.267 29.766
2. Int.erest, exchange rate flucuations, divide  nds and sikilar from non-associated 133 6.533.648 4.486.304
companies ond others
3. Part of revenue from associated companies a  nd prticipating interests 134
4.Unrealised gains (revenues) from financiala  ssets 135
5. Other financial revenues 136
IV. FINANCIAL EXPENSES (138 do 141) 137 61.935.332| 55.925.003
1. Interest, exchange rate fluctuations and oth  er costs with associated companies 138 359.842 227.068
2. Interest, excehange rate flucutations and ot her costs eith non-associated companies 139 61.530.188| 53.659.345
3. Unrealised losses (costs) from financial ass  ets 140 45.302 2.038.590
4. Other financial expenses 141
V. PORTION IN PROFIT OF ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 142 942.791 80.474
VI. PORTION IN LOSS OF ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 143
VII. EKSTRAORDINARY - OTHER REVENUES 144
VIIl. EXTRAORDINARY - OTHER EXPENSES 145
IX. TOTAL REVENUES (111+131+142 + 144) 146 2.290.621.794| 2.969.649.519
X. TOTAL EXPENSES (114+137+143 + 145) 147 2.426.727.754| 2.861.824.337
XI. PROFIT OR LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (146-147) 148 -136.105.960( 107.825.182
1. Profit before taxation (146-147) 149 0| 107.825.182
2. Loss before taxation (147-146) 150 136.105.960 0
XIl. PROFIT TAX 151 0
XIll. PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (148-151) 152 -136.105.960| 107.825.182
1. Profit for the period (149-151) 153 0| 107.825.182
2. Loss for the period (151-148) 154 136.105.960 0




APPENDIX TO PLA (to be completed by companies that  prepare consolidated financial statements)

XIV. PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD

1. Credited to parent company capital owners 155
2. Credited to minority interest 156
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (to be completed by company obligated to apply IFRS)
|. PROFIT OR LOSS OF THE PERIOD (= 152) 157 -136.105.960 107.825.182
Il. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE GAINS/LOSS BEFORE TAXES (159 do 165) 158 0 0
1. Exchange rate differences from translation o f foreign currency operations 159
2. Change in revaluation reserves of fixed tang  ible and intangible assets 160
3. Gain or loss from revaluation of financial a  ssets held for sale 161
4. Gain or loss from effective cash flow hedge 162
5. Gain or loss from effective hedge in netinv  estments in abroad 163
6. Portion in other comprehensive gain7loss of assocated companies 164
7. Acutaral gains7losses on defined benefitpla  ns 165
IIl. TAX ON OTHER COMPREHENSIVE GAINS OR LOSSES FOR THE PERIOD 166
IV. NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE GAINS OR LOSSES FOR THE PERIOD (158-166) 167 0 0
V. COMPREHENSIVE GAIN OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (157+167) 168 -136.105.960| 107.825.182

APPENDIX TO STATEMENT OF COMPREHESIVE INCOME (to be completed by companies that prepare consoli

statements)

dated f inancial

VI. COMPREHENSIVE GAIN OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD

1. Credited to parent company capital owners

169

2. Credited to minority interest

170




CASH FLOW STATEMENT - Direct method
for the perod 01.01.2011.to 31.12.2011.

Petrokemija d.d.

CASH FLOW FROM PPERATIONG ACTIVITIES
1. Cash increase from buyers 001 2.516.430.127| 3.116.393.654
2. Cash increse from royalites, fees commissions and other 002
3. Cash increse from insuarance compensations 003 7.567.820 5.538.010
4. Cash increase from tax return 004 194.868.437 250.390.241
5. Other cash increase 005 7.150.142 7.348.958
I. Total increase of cash flow from operating acti  vities (001 do 005) 006 2.726.016.526| 3.379.670.863
1. Expenses to suppliers 007 2.359.506.367| 2.959.086.260
2. Expenses for employees 008 245.470.345| 269.722.252
3. Expenses for insuarance compensations 009 12.555.826|  15.347.627
4. Expenses for interest 010 24.675.288|  29.431.695
5. Expenses for taxes 011 114.126.022  80.843.774
6. Other cash decrease 012 25.921.925| 15.922.934
Il. Total decrease in cash flow from operating act  ivities (007 do 012) 013 2.782.255.773| 3.370.354.542
A1) NET INCREASE IN CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVI TIES (006-013) 014 0 9.316.321
A2) NET DECREASE IN CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVI TIES (013-006) 015 56.239.247 0
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1. Cash proseeds from sale of non-current tangible and intangible assets 016 17.343 53.628
2. Cash proceeds from sale of equity and debt security instruments 017
3. Cash proceeds from interest payment* 018
4. Cash proceeds of dividend payment* 019 369.664 1.322.680
5. Other cash proceeds from investing activities 020
IIl. Total cash inflow from investing activites (016 do 020) 021 387.007 1.376.308
1. Cash outflow for acquisition of non-current tangible and intangible assets 022 18.341.054|  39.941.196
2. Cash outflow for acquisition of equity and debt financial instruments 023 328.842 206.940
3. Other cash outflows from investing activities 024
IV. Total cash outflow from investing activities (022 do 024) 025 18.669.896|  40.148.136
B1) NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTIN ACTIVITIES (021-02 5) 026 0 0
B2) NET CASH FLOW OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (025-021) 027 18.282.889 38.771.828
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
1. Cash infows from issuance of equity and debt financial instruments 028 21.664.539|  81.110.800
2. Cash inflows from loan pricipals, debentures, credits and other borrowings 029 498.225.388| 875.310.154
3. Other inflows from financial activities 030 309.966.111| 243.798.919
V. Total cash inflow from financial activities (028 do 030) 031 829.856.038] 1.200.219.873
1. Cash outflows for repayment of loan principal and bonds 032 357.730.025| 903.828.114
2. Cash outflows for dividend payment 033
3. Cas outflow for financial lease 034
4. Cash outflows for buybackof own shares 035
5. Other cash outflows for financial activities 036 402.456.198| 280.919.391
VI. Total cash outflow for financial activities (03 2 do 036) 037 760.186.223| 1.184.747.505
C1) NET CASH FLOW INCREASE FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIE S (031-037) 038 69.669.815 15.472.368
C2) NET CASHFLOW DECREASE FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (037-031) 039 0 0
Total increase of cash flow (014 — 015 + 026 — 027 + 038 — 039) 040 0 0
Total decrease of cash flow (015-014 + 027 —02 6 + 039 — 038) 041 4.852.321 13.983.139
Cash and cash equivalents at the begining of the pe  riod 042 26.190.868|  21.338.547
Increase of cash and cash equivalents 043
Decrease of cash adn cash equivalents 044 4.852.321 13.983.139
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 045 21.338.547 7.355.408

*Inflow from interest and dividend can be listed as operating activities (MRS 7 Appendix A)



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the perod from 1.1.2011 to 31.12.2011

1. Suscribed capital 001 902.101.590| 902.101.590
2. Capital reserves 002
3. Reserves from profit 003
4. Retained profit or loss carried forward 004 -108.711.297| -244.817.257
5. Profit or loss for the year 005 -136.105.960| 107.825.182
6. Revaluation of fixed tangeble assets 006
7. Revaluation of intangible assets 007
8. Revaluation of financial assets available for sale 008
9. Other revaluation 009
10. Total capital and reserves (AOP 001 do 009) 010 657.284.333| 765.109.515
11. Exchange differences on translationof financial statements of foreign operations 011
12. Curent and deferred taxes (part)) 012
13.Protektion of cash flow 013
14. Changes in accounting policies 014
15. Adjustment of significant errors from previous period 015
16. Other changes in captal 016
17. Total increase or decrease of capital (AOP 011 do 016) 017 0 0
17 a. Creadited to parent company capital owners 018
17 b. Creadited to minority interest 019

Items that decrease the capital are entered with a minus sign.
Items under AOP marke 001 to 009 are entered as status on balance sheet date.



NOTES

PETROKEMIJA, Plc.

In 2011, Petrokemija, Plc. had total actual income of HRK 2,969.7 million and total expense of HRK 2,861.8
million. On a yearly basis, total revenues have increased by 29.6%, and total expenditures by 17.9%
compared to the same period of 2010.

Greater actual achievement in operating income and expenses, compared to the same period last year, is the
result of the growth of in- and output prices and increased output and sales in a part of the production range
(10.1% higher sales of NPK fertilizers; 13.4% lower sales of CAN). In 2011, Petrokemija's actual production
and sales were approximately the same as in the year before - total fertilizer production was up by 0.3% and
the sales were down by 0.6%.

In 2011, the Company reported HRK 107.8 million in business profits, which is by HRK 243.9 million a better
result on the previous year, when the reported loss was 136.1million. The EBITDA indicator (earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) is HRK 233.2 million in the positive. In 2010, EBITDA was HRK
4.0 million in the negative.

The data show that the growth of income and expense is the impact of significant increase of in- and output
prices and partly of change in product range both in production and sales, while the total volumes were nearly
the same. The actual yearly profit is the result of increased sales in the period of more favorable sales price
in the world market — the prices fluctuated over the year - while it is partly due to positive effects of time
difference in the growth of in- and output prices.

As a reflection of global trends in the energy market, there is a rise in gas price. This most important raw
material is supplied in the domestic market under the so-called Russian formula. It is estimated that in the
first quarter of 2012, the price of gas will reach its maximum, if there are no critical changes in the price of
fuel oil in world markets and growth of USD exchange rate.

Due to the market situation, a part of the facilities was halted in the second half of 2009 and this problem was
carried over into the year 2012. The crisis caused by disparity of in- and output prices in the carbon black
market is still present. Petrokemija is influenced by developments in the global market which gives space to
significant potential price risks and financial fluctuations in 2012.

In addition to their own working capital, short-term bank loans and a long-term loans from the Croatian Bank
for Reconstruction and Development, Petrokemija secured their working capital partly by the release of
commercial papers in the Zagreb Stock Exchange through Privredna banka Zagreb as agent and dealer of
the program.

The future trends in financial results of Petrokemija, Plc. will be influenced by many factors. Besides the gas
price, which is set in the domestic market, the majority of future risk comes from the global environment, i.e.
mainly through:

1. Change in price of basic raw materials in the world markets (MAP, DAP, phosphate, potassium chloride,
sulfur);

Change in demand and sales price of fertilizers;

Price fluctuation of energy fluids - gas and olil;

Price fluctuation of basic agricultural crops;

Exchange rate of USD and EUR to the local currency and

Financing costs and inter-currency relations.

og,HwN

CHANGE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In line with Article 13, pt. 2, of the Accounting Act and International Accounting Standard 27, Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements, investments into daughter companies in 100% ownership of Petrokemija,
Plc. is accounted by the cost method.

As the Company booked the investment by equity accounting method, on 31 December 2011, upon a
decision of the Board, a correction of the share to the value of initial investment cost was carried out.

The effect of this change in Accounting Policy has no significant impact on reported financial result of
Petrokemija, Plc. and Petrokemija Group and they amount to HRK 1.8 million.




PETROKEMIJA d.d.
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STAT;EMENTS

Management Board of the company Petrokemija d.d., Kutina, Aleja Vukovar 4
(hereinafter: the Company) is responsible for ensuring that the financial statements for
2011 are prepared in accordance with the Croatian Accounting Act (Official Gazette
109/07) and with the International Financial Reporting Standards (Official Gazette
136/09, 8/10, 18710, 27/10, 65/10, 120/10, 58/11, 140/11) as published by the
Financial Reporting Standards Board, nominated by the Croatian Government, which
give a true and fair view of the financial balance, business results, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company for that period.

After making enquiries, the Board reasonably expects the Company to have adequate
resources to operate in the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Board continues to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing financial statements.

in preparing those financial statements, the responsibilities of the Board include
that:

suitable accounting policies are selected and then applied consistently;
judgments and estimates given are reasonable and prudent;

applicable accounting standards are followed and subjected to any material

departures disclosed and explained in financial statements; and

financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue operating.

The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which at any time
disclose the financial position and financial results of the Company with reasonable
accuracy and it must also ensure that financial statements compty with the Croatian
Accounting Act (Official Gazette 109/2007) and International financial reporting
standards (Official Gazette 136/09, 8/10, 18/10, 27/10, 65/10, 120/10, 58/11, 140/11)
approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Board. The Board is also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

()/\// /)
Antonija PeroSevic - Galovi¢, Member of the Managemen % rd
M%’;’?)

For and on behalf of the Company:
Josip Jagust, President of the Management Board

Nenad Marinovi¢, Member of the Management Boar:

Tomislav Seletkovié, Member of the Management Board

" PETROKEMIJA d.d.
Aleja Vukovar 4
- 44320 Kutina

Republic of Croatia
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Tel: 385 1 2395-741 BDO Croatia d.o.o0.
Fax: 385 1 2303-691 10000 ZAGRED
£-mait; bdo-croatia@bdo.hr Trg J. F. Kennedy 6b

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Owners of the company Petrokemija d.d., Kutina,

1. we have audited the enclosed financial statements of the company PETROKEMIJA
d.d., Kutina (hereinafter “the Company") for the year ended 31 December 2011, which
comprise the Balance sheet/Statement of financial position as of 31 December 2011,
Income statement/Statement of comprehensive income, Statement of changes in equity
and Cash flow statement for the year then ended, and the accompanying Notes to the
financial statements which concisely set out the principal accounting policies and other
disclosures.

Responsibility of the Company’s management

2. The preparation and a fair presentation of the enclosed Financial Statements
according to the International Financial Reporting Standards effective in the Republic of
Croatia and also those internal controls which are determined by the Company's
management as necessary to enable preparation of the financial statements free from
material misstatements whether due to fraud or error are the responsibility of the
Company's management.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit includes performing of procedures to obtain audit evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatements in the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Company’s management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial Statements.

We believe that auditing proof and evidence being collected by us are sufficient and
suitable as the basis for our opinion.

Registrirano kod Trgovackog suda u Zagrebu pod brojem 080044149
OB 76394522136 :




BDO Croatia d.o.o.

Opinion

4, In our opinion, the accompanyingifinancial statements, in alt material respects,
give true and fair presentation of the financial position of the Company Petrokemija
d.d. as of 31 December 2011, and the results of operations and the cash flows of the
Company for the year 2011 in accordance with the Accounting Act and the International
Financial Reporting Standards effective in the Republic of Croatia.

Emphasis of matter

5. Without qualifying our opinion presented in the paragraph 4 above, we draw
attention to the fact that the Company in 2011 realized profit in the amount of HRK
107,825 thousand, while in 2010 the Company realized loss in the amount of 136,106
HRK thousand. The improvement of financial result in 2011 is a mainly result of faster
growth of operating income (30.2%) compared to operating expenses (18.7%). The most
significant effect is realized through increase in the sales income, using the favourable
market situation, market selection and adjusting sales assortment to the market
requirements, :

Mentioned facts indicate that there has been a positive balancing in input and
output prices in 2011, resulting in reduction of risks from unpredictable negative
influence of potential new wave of global crisis.

Other legal and regulatory reguirements

6. The preparation of the annual financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2011 in prescribed form on the basis of Regutation on the structure
and content of the annual financial statements (National gazette No 38/08, 12/09,
130/10) (*’Standard annual financial statements’’) is responsibility of the Company's
management. Financial information sef. out in standard annual financial statements of
the Company are identical to information stated in the annual financial statements of
the Company shown on pages 4 to 43, on which we have expressed our opinion as stated
in the paragraph ,,Opinion above.

In Zagreb, 14 March 2012

BDO Croatia d.o.0.
Trg J. F. Kennedy 6b
10000 Zagreb

I“{DG) C:l"ﬂ:lliﬂ d.o.o. e,
ra preFanje revizovshil onzaliing
i padmminvadsivenih uslinga
' Zageeh, LU, Kennedy 6/
Vel
ZD "]ﬂ - (
Ines Rozi¢, certified auditor Jeni Krsticevi¢, president of the

Management Board




PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina

INCOME STATEMENT / STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2011

DESCRIPTION Note 2011 2010
HRK 000 HRI 000

OPERATING INCOME

Sales income 4. 2,895,874 2,220,116
Other operating income 5. 49,179 41,330
Total operating income 2,945,053 2,261,446

_OPERATING EXPENSES

Changes of finished goods and work in progress 6. 99,921 36,075
Material costs 7. (2,483,207) (1,976,139)
Staff costs 8. (232,887) (216,077)
Depreciation 9. (94,003} (99,325)
Assets value adjustments 10. {4,969) (9,903)
Provisions 1. {4,497) (15,716}
Other operating costs 12, (86,197) (83,708)
Total operating expenses (2,805,899) (2,364,793)
PROFIT/LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 139,154 (103,347)
FINANCIAL INCOME 13. 24,516 28,233
FINANCIAL EXPENSES 14. {55,925) (61,935)
LOSS FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (31,409) (33,702}
SHARE IN PROFIT OF ASSOCIATED ENTITIES 80 943
TOTAL INCOME 2,969,649 . 2,290,622
TOTAL EXPENSES (2,861,824) (2,426,728)
Profit/loss before taxation 107,825 (136,106)
Profit tax 15, 0 0
PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE YEAR 107,825 (136,106)
Other comprehensive income 0 0
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/LOSS 107,825 (136,106)

The accompanying notes under nurnbers | to Vil are an integral part of these financial

statements.




PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina

BALANCE SHEET / STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as of 31 December 2011

DESCRIPTION Note 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK '000 HRK '000

ASSETS

Long-term assets

Property, plant and equipment 16. 737,832 784,383
Intangible assets 17. 7,667 8,057
Financial asseis 8. 22,062 31,000
Receivables 0 0
Total long-term assets 767,561 823,440
Short-term assets

inventories 19. 653,760 478,795
Trade receivables 20. 147,437 87,155
Receivables from related companies 4,617 ¢]
Receivables from State and other institutions 21, 39,789 117,335
Receivables form employees and members 21 27
Other short-term receivables 3,337 659
Financial assets 22, 20,211 3,548
Cash 23, 7,355 21,339
Total short-term assets 876,527 708,858
Prepayments and accrued income 24 2,734 1,763
TOTAL ASSETS 1,646,822 1,534,061
OFF-BALANCE SHEET RECORDS 37. 186,462 141,203

The accompanying notes under numbers | to VI are an integral part of these financial

statements.




PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina

BALANCE SHEET / STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as of 31 December 2011

DESCRIPTION Note - 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK '000 HRK "000
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
Capital 25,
Subscribed capital 902,102 902,102
Loss carried forward (244,817) (108,711)
Profit/toss for the year 107,825 {136,106)
Total capital 765,110 657,285
Long-term liabilities
t jabilities to banks and other financial {nstitutions 26. 80,000 62,222
Provisions 27. 14,197 14,532
Total long-term liabilities 94,197 76,754
Short-term [iabiiities
Trade payables 28. 331,325 334,923
Liabilities to retated companies 29. 3,493 4,520
Liabitities to banks and other financiat institutions 30. 307,722 354,018
Liabilities to employees 31. 13,614 13,329
Liabilities to the State and other institutions 32, 9,921 8,173
Liabilities for securities 33 81,176 22,125
Prepayment liabilities 34, 25,991 56,326
Other short-term labilities 35, 10,810 3,174
Total short-term Habilities 784,052 796,588
Accrued expenses and deferred income 36. 3,463 3,434
TOTAL CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 1,646,822 1,534,061
OFF-BALANCE SHEET RECORDS 37. 186,462 141,203

The accompanying notes under numbers | to Vil are an inte
statements.

gral part of these financial
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PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina
CASH FLOW STATEMENT - DIRECT METHQD
for the year ended 31 December 2011

DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK'000 HRK'GOO
Cash flows from operating activities _
Customers cash inflows 3,116,394 2,516,430
Cash inflows from insurance for ctaim compensations 5,538 7,568
Cash inflows from tax returns 250,390 194,869
Other cash inflows 7,349 7,150
Total cash inflows from operating activities 3,379,671 2,726,017
Suppliers 2,959,086 2,359,507
Employees 269,722 245,470
Cash outflows for claim insurance 15,348 12,556
Cash outflows for interests 29,432 24,675
Cash outflows for taxes 80,844 114,126
Other cash outflows 15,923 25,922
Total cash outflows from operating activities 3,370,355 2,782,256
. Net increaseldecrease in cash flows from operating activities 9,316 (56,239)
Cash flows from investment activities
Cash inflows from sale of long-term tangible and intangible assets 54 17
Cash inflows from dividends 1,322 370
Total cash inflows from investment activities 1,376 387
Cash outflows for purchase of long-term tangibte and intangible assets 39,941 18,341
Cash outflows for acquisition of equity and debt financial instruments 207 329
Total cash outflows from investment activities 40,148 18,670
Net decrease in cash flows from investment activities (38,772) (18,283)
Cash flows from financial activities
Cash inflows from issuance of equity and debt financial instrumen@s 81,111 21,665
Cash inflows from oan principal, bonds, borrowings and other 875,310 498,725
Other inflows from financial activities 243,799 309,966
Total cash inflows from financial activities 1,200,220 829,856
Cash outflows for repayment of toan principal and bonds 903,829 357,730
Other outflows from financial activities ' 280,919 402,456
Total cash outflows from financial activities 1,184,748 760,186
Net increase in cash flows from financial activities 15,472 69,670
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (13,984) (4,852}
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY 21,339 26,191
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 7,355 21,339
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {13,984) (4,852)

The accompanying notes under numbers | to Vil are an integral part of these financial

statements.




PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011 .

1. GENERAL

1.1. Legal framework, activity and employees

The company Petrokemija d.d. Fertilizers factory (hereinafter “the Company”)
was founded in 1965, although the beginning of the sooth production which dates way
back in 1926. Initially all manufacturing was unified into a work organization INA
Petrokemija Kutina within the SOUR INA Industrija nafte Zagreb. Today the Company is
registered at the Commercial Court in Sisak under registration number: 080004355 and
personal identification number: 24503685008.

As at 31 December 2011 the stock capital amounts to HRK 902,102 thousands and
it is divided into 3,341,117 non-materialized ordinary shares on the name, each at a
nominal vatue of HRK 270.00.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company employed 2,301 employees (31 December
2010: 2,346 employees).Analysis of the employees by professional qualification is shown
as follows:

Professional qualification 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
University degree 220 220
Higher education 86 85
High school 621 631
Highly qualified 162 ' 168
Qualified 900 926
PK 90 90
Non-qualified 222 ' 226
Total 2,301 ] 2,346

Pursuant to the national classification of activities and along with the basic
activity of manufacturing mineral fertilizers registered at the Commercial Court
Register in Sisak, the Company’s main activities are: production of food additives for
animals, production of chemicals and chemical products, production of other rubber,
products, metal products, supply of electricity, gas, steam and hot water, collecting,
purifying and distributing water, research and development in natural, technical and
technological sciences.




PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina _
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
for the year ended 31 December 2011 '

1.2. Company Bodies

The Company Bodies are the Management Board, Supervisory Board and General
Assembty.

Member of the Management Board are:

Josip Jagust President

Antonija PeroSevi¢ - Galovic Member until 15 June 2011
Tomislav Seletkovié Member

Nenad Marinovi¢ Member until 15 June 2011
Zdenka Krstanovic Mandate expired on 14 June 2011
Nedjetjko Klopcek Mandate expired on 14 June 2011

The fees paid to the Management Board members are shown in the note 8 to the
financial statements.

Members of the Supervisory Board are:

Zeljko Klaus President

Mijo Sepak . Vice president until 29 March 2011
lvan Car Member

Dragutin Vajnaht Member

Jozo Bilobrk Member until 23 February 2011
Miroslav Golub Member until 10 March 2011
Zlatan Kuljis Member until 10 March 2011

tva Gali¢ Recalled 10 March 2011

Vikica Plese Recalled 10 March 2011

Goran Kraij Vice president until 29 March 2011
Ivica Londarevic Mandate expired on 16 January 2011
Mario Radakovi¢ Member 27 January 2012

The Supervisory Board of the Company has nine members. Members are
appointed by the General Assembly. The General Assembly is the Company Body in
which shareholders realize their rights in the Company’s operations unless regulated
differently under the law or the Constitution. The General Assembly members are
shareholders with the voting rights. The Company has no loans granted to members of
the Management Board and the Supervisory Board.

The Audit Committee

On 29 April 2011 on the 11 Supervisory Board meeting the Company has brought
the Decision about founding the Audit Committee and the Decision about the

- designation of the Audit Committee members. Audit Committee performs activities as

prescribed in the article 28 of the Audit Act jurisdiction. Designated members of the
Audit Committee are:

10




PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Zlatan Kuljis - President :
prof.dr.sc. Miroslav Golub - Member
mr.oec. Mijo Sepak - Member

7eljko Klaus - Member

lvan Car - Member

Dragutin Vajnaht - Member

Jozo Bilobrk - Member

il BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. Statement of compliance and basis of presentation

Financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with
Accounting Act (Official Gazette 109/07) and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) (Official Gazette 136/09, 8/10, 18/10, 27/10, 65/10, 120/10, 58/11,
140/11) as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Board nominated by Government
of the Republic of Croatia, and in accordance with the Regulations on the structure and
content of annual financial statements (Official Gazette 38708, 12/09, 130/10).

2.2. Basis for preparation

Financial statements have been prepared using the basic accounting assumption
of the transaction in which the effects of transactions are recognized when they occur
and reported in financial statements for the period to which they relate and with the
application of fundamental accounting assumption of going concern.

2.3. The key evaluation and uncertainty of evaluations

The key estimates and uncertainty of estimates

In preparing financial statements, it is necessary to apply certain estimates
which have an influence on the parent company’s and related companies’ assets and
liabilities, revenues and expenses as well as disclosure of contingent liabilities.

Future events and their effects can't be predicted with certainty; therefore
actual results could differ from those estimated. The estimates used in preparing the
financial statements are subject to change as new events occur, additional experience,

obtaining additional information and insights and changes in the environment in which

the company and related companies operates.

The key estimates used in applying accounting policies in preparing the financial
statements relate to the depreciation of long-term tangible and intangible assets, assets
impairments, impairment of inventories, impairment of receivables and provisions and
disclosure of contingent liabilities.

2.4. Reporting currency

Financial statements of the Company are stated in Croatian Kuna as measuring
-and reporting currency.

11
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PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Financial statements are prepared in Croatian Kunas as a measuring and
reporting currency of the Company.

Hl SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1. Income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable during Company’s regular activities. Revenue is reduced for value added tax,
estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances. The Company
recognizes revenue when it can be reliably measured, when the Company will have the
economic benefits and when specific criteria for all Company’s activities are met.

a) Income from sale of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognized when the Company has
transferred the significant risks and rewards of the ownership of the goods to the buyer
and it is probable that the Company will receive the previously agreed upon payment.
These criteria are considered to be met when the goods are delivered to the buyer.
Where the buyer has a right to return, the Company defers recognition of revenue until
the right to return has lapsed. However, where the Company retains only insignificant
risks of ownership due to the right of return, revenue is not deferred, but the Company
recognizes a provision based on previous experience and other relevant factors. The
same policy applies to warranties.

b) Income from sale of services

Provided the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that
the Company will receive any consideration, revenue for services is recognized in the
period in which they are rendered.

Proceeds from the contracts for performance of services are recognized in
relation to the level of execution of the contract. Stages of execution of the contract
are determined as follows:

« services performed are recognized in relation to the level of performance,
defined as the percentage of time spent in relation to the total time that
elapsed from the balance sheet date;

« maintenance fee included in cost of products sold are recognized in relation to
the proportion of the total cost for the maintenance of the product sold, taking
into account the number of previous maintenance service before sales, and
+ revenue from the contract based on used time and material is recognized,
according to contracted rates in the period in which hours of working hours were
conducted and in which direct costs are incurred.




PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
for the year ended 31 December 2011

¢) Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, based on outstanding principal and
the applicable effective interest rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in finance income in
the Income statement/Statement of comprehensive income.

d) Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is
accounted for on a straight line basis over the lease terms.

3.2, Rental costs

Rental costs are debitéd to the Income statement in the period in which they
occur.

3.3. Transactions in foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into HRK (Croatian Kuna) at the
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Croatian Kuna is the currency of the
company and therefore financial staternents are presented in that currency.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance
sheet date are transiated to HRK at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. All
differences are taken to the income statement with the exception of all monetary items

that provide an effective hedge for a net investment in a foreign operation.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominatéd in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions.

Foreign exchange differences arising from transtation of net assets at the initial
start rate and the results of international activities at the real exchange rate are
recognized in other comprehensive profit and accumulated in the foreign exchange
reserves.

The exchange rate applied at 31 December 2011 was EUR 1 = HRK 7.53 (31
December 2010: EUR 1 = HRK 7.39), USD 1 = HRK 5.82 (31 December 2010: USD 1 = HRK
5.57), RSD 1 = HRK 0.073 (31 December 2010: RSD 1 = HRK 0.071).

13




PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

3.4, Taxation

Current tax liability is basedt on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax liability is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance
sheet/Statement of financial position date.

Current corporate income tax retating to items recognized directly in equity is
recognized in equity and not in the income statement. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

3.5, Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on account and cash in hand and are
recorded in the Statement of financial position. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents are generally approximate their fair values.

For the cash flow reporting purposes, cash and cash equivalents include cash and
accounts with banks with maturity up to three months.

3.6. Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are started at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses and represent tangible assets if their useful life is
longer than one year, and thetr individual value exceeds HRK 3,500 on the purchase
date. '

Cost inctudes the purchase price, plant and equipment spare part costs and
other directly associated cost as well as estimated value of future removal costs is
recognition conditions from the same are met.

Land and property are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on
property and impairment losses recognized after the date of the revaluation based on
the frequently performed evaluations by the professional appraisers.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced in intervals, the Company recognizes such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciation. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed,
its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognized in the income statement as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated by deducting residual value of the assets, except land
and investments in progress, on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
the assets by the following rates:

14




PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Description 2011 2010
% %
Buildings ‘ 3.00-8.33 3.00-8.33
Plant and equipment 12.50 - 20,00 12.50 - 20.00
Transport vehictes 20 20

Depreciation is calculated separately by each item of assets till it is fully
depreciated, : ‘

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially
recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. ‘

Any gains or losses from disposal of certain asset are determined as difference
between sale revenue and carrying amount of that asset and are recognized as expense
or income in the Income statement.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are
reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.7. Intangible assets

Intangible assets refer to IT programmes and leasehold investments initially
recognized at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis during estimated useful
lives,

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumutated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
expenditure is reflected in the income statement in the year in which the expenditure is
incurred. The useful tives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The depreciation period and the depreciation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the depreciation
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
Intangible assets are depreciated with the annual rate of 20%.

The depreciation cost on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
income statement in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible
asset. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not depreciated, but are tested
for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash generating unit level.

The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annuatly to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. [f not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

15




PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

3.8. Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Under regulations of the stated standard of evaluating inventory, the following is
encompassed:

e Cost of raw material and material inventory include purchase price, import
customs and other expenses which can be directly ascribed to supply of raw
material and material; commercial discounts and similar items are
subtracted when determining purchase expenses. The expenditure of raw
material and material inventories is stated at the weighted average method;
warehouse inventories are evaluated under the same method,

« Small inventory include tools, operative and office inventory as similar
working assets with intended use up to one year and assets that are not
considered long-term,

o expenditure, i.e. putting small inventories and car-tires in use as well as
spare parts are included in expenses through a one-time write-off method,

« expenditure, i.e. packaging write-off is postponed until the suppliers receive
information on the packaging character (disposable or non-disposable),

» merchandise represents inventories of purchased goods with intention to be
sold again and is stated at sale prices less VAT the difference in the price of
goods (margin),

« Inventories of production and finished goods are measured at the net market
value, i.e. at the production cost price, depending on which is lower but with
calculating possible deviations from the production cost price during the
year.

After the sale, the Company recognizes the carrying value of inventories as an
expense in the period in which relative income is recognized. Also the amount of any
- write-off of inventories to the net marketable value, and all shortages of inventories are
recognized as an expense in the period of write-off or occurrence of shortage. The
amount of any cancellation of inventory write-off as a result of increase in net
marketable value is recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized
as an expense in the period in which there was a cancellation.

3.9. Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and receivables. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Subseauent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as
follows:
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PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina :
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

a) Financial assets at fair value th;rough profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held
for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified into this category if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling in the near term. Assets in this category are classified as short-
term assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are initially measured at fair
value and transaction cost is stated in the income statement. Gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized in the income statement within financial income or expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initiat
measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method (EIR), less impairment.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the income statement. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the income statement in finance costs.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where appticabié a part of a financial asset) is
derecognised when: '

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

« Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
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impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event') and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with-defaults.

3.9, Financial liabilities

initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of 1AS 39 are classified as financial liabitities
at fair value through profit or loss or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The
Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and
borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial
liabilities inctude trade and other payables, bank overdraft, and loans and borrowings.

a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Financial liabilities at fair vatue through profit or loss includes financial liabilities
held for trading and financial tiabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or 1oss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling in the near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by IAS 39.

b) Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) deprecation
process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EiR.

The EIR depreciation is included in finance cost in the income statement.
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Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelted or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

3.10. Stakes / shares in related companies

Subsidiaries are entities in which the Company has control to participate in
decision-making regarding financial and operating policies of entity (over 50% of share).
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost.

Associated companies are companies in which the Company has between 20% and.

50% voting rights and in which the Company has significant influence, but not control, to
participate in decision-making regarding financial and operating poticies of associated
companies. Investments in associates are stated using the equity method,

3.11. The fair vaiue of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is determined at
each reporting date in relation to quoted market prices or dealer price without any
deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments not traded in an active
market, fair vatue is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such
techniques may include using recent impartial market transactions, considering the
current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis or other valuation models.

3.12. Provisions

A provision is recognized only when the Company has a present obligation as a.

result of a past event and it is probable, that the obligation will require an outflow of
resources with economic benefits and a retiable estimate can determine the amount of
the obtigation. Provisions are reviewed at each Balance sheet/Statement of financial
position date and adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

Provisions are established for litigation costs, severance payment costs,
reimbursements to employees for long-term employment and retirement (regular
jubilee awards and severance payments) and cost of stimulating severance payments
based on the Company’s personnel restructuring plan,

Provisions for reimbursements to employees for long-term employment and
retirement (regular jubilee awards and severance payments) are determinated as the
current value of future cash outflow using the discount rate which corresponds the
interest rate on state bonds.
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3.13. Contingent liabilities and assets

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are
disclosed only in the notes to the financial statements.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements, but are
recognized when an inflow of economic benefits becomes probable.

3.14. Retirement benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

Contributions from the plan of the Company relating to pensions are charged to
Income account in the year to which they relate.

Defined benefit plans

Surpluses and deficits arising from defined benefit plans are measured by:
» the fair value of assets available for benefits at the reporting date, minus
» Net present value of promised benefits, and

« adjustments for unrecognized past service costs.

The Company doesn't have pension arrangements other than those within the
state pension system of Republic of Croatia.

3.15. Subsequent events

Events after the date of the statement of financial position are those favourable
and unfavourable events that have occurred between the date of the statement of
financial position and the date on which financial statements are approved for issuance.
The Company adjusts amounts recognized in its financial statements for events occurred
after the dated of the statement of financial position which requires adjustment.
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PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina _
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS °
for the year ended 31 December 2011

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

4, Sales income

Sales income is shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK ‘000 HRK 'G00
income from domestic sale 984,310 830,985
income from export 1,911,564 1,389,131
TOTAL 2,895,874 2,220,116
a) Income from domestic sale is shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK ‘000 HRK '000
Sale of products 973,770 80%,678
Sate of merchandise 5,450 18,592
Sale of services 4,996 6,511
Other domestic sale 94 204
TOTAL 984,310 830,985
a-i) Income from sale of products is shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK '000 HRK "000
Wholesale 948,959 801,977
Retail 4,811 3,701
TOTAL 973,770 805,678
b) Income from export is shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK '000 HRK "000
Sale to unrelated companies abroad 1,509,456 988,473
Sale to related companies 74,511 49,374
Sale of products in Slovenia 170,433 215,383
Sale of products in BiH 128,422 112,659
Sale of products in SiCG 10,147 8,075
Sale of products in Macedonia 18,595 15,167
TOTAL 1,911,564 1,389,131
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5. Other operating incorne

Other operating income is shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK '000 HRK 000
Collection of boat compensation-savings 2,324 1,331
Income from elimination of long-term provisions 4,803 600
Collected written-off receivables 1,070 2,235
Collected claims, penalties and similar 10,354 14,797
income from package and spare parts production 11,722 8,294
income from own consumption 8,703 7,032
Other non-specified operating income 10,203 7,041
TOTAL o 49,179 41,330
6. Changes in finished products and work in progress inventory

increase in inventory value stated in the statement of comprehensive income for
2011 in the amount of HRK 99,921 thousands (2010: HRK 36,075 thousands) represent
correction of stated costs for the amount of costs of work in progress and finished
products at the end of the business year in retation to the same at the beginning of the
business year. ' '

7. Material costs
Material costs are shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK ‘000 " HRK '000
Raw materiat and material 2,358,139 1,858,059
Services 117,254 99,934
Sold goods 7,814 18,146
TOTAL 2,483,207 1,976,139
a) Raw material and material costs are shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK "000 HRK '000
Used raw material and material 763,579 648,866
Energy costs 1,509,008 1,137,182
Used spare parts 25,462 21,248
written-off small inventory and packages 60,090 50,763
TOTAL 2,358,139 1,858,059

Raw material and material costs for 2011
same period in previous year due to increase in pro

material prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

b) Services costs are shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK 000 HRK 000

Transportation services 62,686 54,338
Maintenance services 25,136 © 18,158
Rental and leasing services 312 290
Advertising and promotion services 2,140 1,514

Utility services 1,425 1,978

Export, reload and warehousing services 108 182
Services on export 24,362 22,629
Services of testing the product quality 279 367

Other production services 806 478
TOTAL 117,254 99,934
8. Employees’ costs

Employees’ costs are shown as fotlows:
DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK '000 HRK 000

Net salaries and wages 145,821 135,862
Taxes and contributiens from salaries and wages 52,832 48,457
Contributions on salaries and wages 34,234 31,758
TOTAL 232,887 216,077

Reimbursements to the Management Board members are shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK 060 HRK '000
Net salaries and wages 1,025 984
Taxes and contributions from salaries and wages 865 876 }
Contributions on salaries and wages 328 322
TOTAL 2,218 2,182
9. Depreciation costs
Depreciation costs are shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION ' 2011 2010
HRIK '000 HRK '000
Buildings 21,275 21,523
Plant and equipment (machinery) 67,808 72,943
Toots, plant and office furniture 3,456 3,672
Intangible assets 1,524 1,187

TOTAL 94,063 99,325
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10,  Assets value adjustments

Assets value adjustments are shown as follows:

PESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK 000 HRK 000
Current value of disposed assets 108 36
Inventory value adjustments 1,644 5,546
Value adjustment of trade receivables 631 1,676
Inventory adjustment for inventory shortages 2,586 2,645
TOTAL 4,969 9,903
11. Provision costs
Provision costs are shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK '000 HRXK ‘000
Jubilee awards 928 9,013
Severance payments 106 3,269
Unused vacations 3,463 3,434
TOTAL 4,497 15,716
12. Other expenses
Other expenses are shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
B HRK 000 HRK ‘000
Representation 764 551
nsurance premiums 11,773 11,796
Taxes and contributions independent of the restit 26,275 24,400
Banking services 5,931 10,403
Other non materiat expenses 3,745 4,890
Other non productive services 3,090 6,114
Business trips 1,205 1,069
Transportation costs to and from work 15,440 13,639
Vacation reimbursements 5,841 5,891
Severance payments 8,394 1,477
Christmas bonus - benefits in kind 926 940
Other reimbursements to employees 2,753 2,538
TOTAL 86,197 83,708
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13. Financial income

Financial income is shown as follows:

DESCRIPTICN 2011 2010
HRK '000 HRK '000
Interest, foreign exchange gains, dividends and similar income -
related companies 30 1,699
Interest, foreign exchange gains, dividends and simitar income - '
unrelated companies o 24,486 16,534
TOTAL 24,516 28,233

.. Ly

a) Income from foreign exchange gains are shown as follows:

-
DESCRIPTION 2011 2010

HRK 000 HR¥ '000
Foreign exchange gains - unrelated companies 19,574 20,187
Foreign exchange gains - related companies 30 36
TOTAL - 19,604 20,223
b} Interest income is shown as follows:
-
DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
‘ HRK 000 HRK '000
Interest income - unrelated companies 4,543 5,827
TOTAL 4,543 5,827
¢) Other financial income is shown as follows:
. e
DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
' HRK '000 HRK '000
Participations - unrelated companies 359 370
Other financial income - related companies 0 1.663
Other o 10 150
TOTAL 369 2,183
14, Financial expenses
Financial expenses are shown as follows:
- e ————
DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK 000 HRK 000
Interest, foreign exchange losses and other expenses - related
companies 227 360
interest, foreign exchange losses and other expenses - unretated
companies : 53,659 61,530
Unrealized losses from financial assets 2,039 45
TOTAL 55,925 61,935
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a) Interest expenses are shown as follows: .

DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK 000 HRK ‘000
Loan interest expenses 21,698 20,369
Interest expenses - suppliers 9,385 9,697
Interest expenses - related companies 202 261
TOTAL 31,285 30,327
c} Foreign exchange losses are shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK 000 HRK '000
Foreign exchange losses - suppliers 19,702 25,867
Foreign exchange losses - foreign currencies 2,874 5,597
Foreign exchange losses - related companies 25 9%
TOTAL 22,601 31,563

15. Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax is calculated using the tax rate of 20% (2010: 20%)
according to legal regulations, on the tax base which represent difference between
income and expenses for the relevant accounting period. Starting tax base was
increased by 70% of representation expenses, 30% of personal transportation expenses
and expenses based on shortages, while it was decreased for dividend income and share

portion in the profit.

in the current year the Company realized operating profit and didn’t state
corporate income tax lability. Calculation of corporate income tax was conducted
pursuant to Croatian legal regulations and is shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 2011 2010
HRK 000 HRK '000
Accounting profit/loss 107,825 (136,106}
Total increase of profit/decrease of loss 11,740 24,844
Total decrease of profit/increase of loss (9,323) {5,257}
Profit/loss after increase/decrease 110,242 {116,519)
Tax loss carried forward (397,801) (281,282}
Tax loss for carrying forward {287,559) {'397,801)
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Review of tax losses carried forward is shown as follows:

Year
Pescription 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
' HRK'000 HRK'000  HRK'000  HRK'0G0  HRK'000  HRK'000
a) Tax loss of the current year 71,931 ¢ ¢ 271,343 116,519 ¢
b} Tex loss carried forward from previous years (f) 136,461 208,392 64,255 9,939 281,282 397,801
) Total tax loss (a+b). 208,392 208,392 64,255 281,282 397,801 397,801
d) Tax profit of the current year 0 144,137 54,316 4] 0 110,242
e} Tax profit used in the current year (d) 0 144,137 54,316 1] 0 110,242
f) Tax loss for carrying forward {c- &) 208,392 64,255 9,939 281,282 397,801 287,559

The Company did not recognized deferred tax assets in the financial statements
based on the losses carried forward due to uncertainty of utilization in the future.
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PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina Q
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

17. intangible assets

Intangible Intangible TOTAL
DESCRIPTION assets under assets
construction In use
HRK ‘000 HRK ‘000 HRK "000

PURCHASE VALUE

Balance at 1 January 2010 5,548 12,558 18,106

Acquisitions during the year 2,308 0 2,308

Transfer from tnvestments in

progress {6,414) 6,352 {62)

Balance at 31 December 2010 1,442 18,910 20,352

Acquisitions during the year 1,129 5° 1,134

Transfer from investments in

Progress {596) 596 0]

Balance at 31 December 2011 1,975 19,511 21,486

IMPAIRMENT

Balance at 1 January 2010 Y 11,108 11,108

Depreciation during 2010 0 1,187 1,187

Balance at 31 December 2010 0 12,295 12,295

Depreciation during 2011 0 1,524 1,524

Balance at 31 December 2011 [ 13,819 13,819

CURRENT VALUE

1 January 2010 5,548 1,450 6,998

31 December 2010 1,442 6,615 8,057

31 December 2011 1,975 5,692 7,667
18.  Financial assets

Financial assets are shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
" HRK ‘000 HRK ‘000
Stakes in subsidiaries 7,771 10,736
Other fnvestments 14,291 " 16,986
Deposits and down payments 0 3,278
Total 22,062 31,000
a) Stakes in subsidiaries are shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK ‘000 HRK ‘000

Restaurant Petrokemija d.o.o., Kutina - 100% of ownership 5,338 3,477
Petrokemija d.0.0., Novi Sad - 100% of ownership 259 5,066
Petrokemija d.o.0., Novo Mesto - 100% of ownership 2,174 2,193
Totai 7,771 10,736
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PETROKEMIJA d.d., Kutina
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

In 2011 stakes in subsidiaries in the sole owner of the company were stated at
cost. Until 2011 investments in subsidiaries were stated using the equity method; but
based on the decisions of the Management Board, as at 31 December 2011 the Company
conducted correction of stakes to the value of the initial investment cost. Effects of
changes in accounting policies didn’t have significant impact on reported financial
result of the Company and the Group Petrokemija and are quantified in the amount of
HRK 1.8 million.

b) Other investments are shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK 000 HRK 000
Privredna banka d.d., Zagreb 10,759 12,798
Luka Sibenik d.o.0., Sibenik 3,525 4,180
TV Moslavina, Kutina 7 8
Total 14,291 16,986
19.  Inventories
Inventories are shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK 000 HRK '000
Raw material and material 191,579 123,848
Spare parts 104,422 93,880
small inventory, packages and car-tires 11,535 9,229
Work in progress 41,135 23,553
Finished products 300,391 219,746
Merchandise inventory 4,262 3,788
Prepayments for raw material and material inventory 436 4,751
Total 653,760 478,795
20. Trade receivables
Trade receivables are shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK '000 HRK '000
A) Domestic trade receivables
Domestic trade receivables 158,405 77,794
Impairments of domestic trade receivables (20,975} (23,348
Total A) 137,430 54,446
B) Foreign trade receivables
Foreign trade receivables 10,462 33,180
Impairments of foreign trade receivables {455) (471)
Total B) 10,007 32,709
Total (A+B) 147,437 87,155
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Impairments of trade receivables are shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION Amount

HRK "000
Balance at 31 December 2010 23,819
Collected written off receivables {Note 5) (1,070)
Booked-of previously written off receivables {1,950}
Mew impairment of trade receivables (Note 10) 631
Balance at 31 December 2011 21,430

Maturity structure of trade receivables is shown as follows:

Due
Uptoi
Patum DESCRIPTION Total Impairment Net Undue year Over 1 year
l HRK '000 HRK ‘000 HRK 000 HRK ‘000 HRK 000 HRK '000
1 2 3={1+2) 4 5 b
31 Dec 2011 Trade receivables 168,867 {21,430) 147,437 132,797 13,969 671
31 Dec 2010 Trade receivables 110,974 {23,819) 87,155 67,619 18,576 960
21.  Receivables from the State and other institutions
Receivables from the State and other institutions are shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK '000 HRK "000
Receivables for overpaid taxes and contributions 39,789 . 42,871
Receivables from the MAFR 0 74,464
Total ) 39,789 117,335

Receivables from the State for the more reported tax and contributions stated in

the amount of HRK 39,789 thousand (31 December 2010; HRK 42,871

thousand) mostly

relate to receivables from the state for corporate income tax in the amount of HRK

39,058 thousand.

22, Short-term financial assets

DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK "006 HRK 000
Given deposits 15,061 0
Receivables from securities 5,150 3,548
Total 20,211 3,548
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Given deposits are shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
currency EUR '000 HRK '000
ErstefiSteiermaerkische bank d.d. EUR 1,700 12,802
Hrvatska postanska banka d.d.- EUR 300 2,259

Total 2,000 15,061

23. Cash is shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 34 Dec 2010
HRK "060 HRY '000
Cash at HRK accounts 2,472 1,128
Cash at foreign currency accounts 4,878 19,381
Cash in hand 5 22
Other cash 0 808
Total 7,355 : 21,339

24, Prepayments and accrued incorne

in 2011 the Company issued commercial papers to cover the current liquidity as
shown in the note 33 to the financial statements. Prepayments stated as at 31
December 2011 in the amount of HRK 2,734 thousand (31 December 2010: HRK 1,763
thousand) refer to the investment cost by the individual tranche of issued commercial
papers that will be recognized in the income statement in the moment of repurchase of
tranche.

25. Capital

Subscribed capital stated in the amount of HRK 902,102 thousand (31 December
2010: HRK 902,102 thousand} represent own permanent sources for the Company's
operations and include stock principle registered at the Commercial court in Sisak.
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Ownership structure of the first ten shareholders as at the 31 December 2011 is
shown as follows:

Equity
Sharehotder Number of shares participation
pc %
AUDIO/REPUBLIKA HRVATSKA , 1,691,742 50,63
SOCIETE GENERALE-SPLITSKA BANKA DD /ERSTE PLAVI
OBVEZNI MIROVINSKI FOND 184,883 5,53
HYPO ALPE-ADRIA-BANK DD /PBZ CROATIA OSIGURANJE
OBVEZNI MIROVINSKI FOND 160,549 4,81
SOCIETE GENERALE-SPLITSKA BANKA DD / A7 OBVEZNI
MIROVINSK! FOND 148,064 4,43
BAKIC NEMAD 104,475 3,13
HRVATSKA POSTANSKA BANKA DD /KAPITALNI FOND D.D 95,273 2,85
SOCIETE GENERALE-SPLITSKA BANKA DD /AZ PROFIT
DOBROVOLJNI MIROVINSKI FOND 72,462 2,17
PBZ d.d./ STATE STREET CLIENT ACCOUNT 50,505 1,51
PBZ d.d./ THE BANK OF NEW YORK AS CUSTODIAN 24,136 0,72
7AGREBACKA BANKA DD/ZBIRNI SKRBNICKI RACUN ZABA DD 21,876 0,65
Total 2,553,965 76,43

/ii/ Loss carried forward stated in the amount of HRK 244,817 thousand (31
December 2010: 108,711 thousand) represent uncovered losses of previous years. On 20
April 2011, the Company's Assembly reached decision on transfer of loss for 2010 to 2011
as uncovered loss.

26. Liabilities to banks and other financial institutions

Liabilities to banks and other financial institutions are shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK 000 HRK '000
Liabilities from long-term loans 142,222 80,000
Current maturity of long-term tiabilities (Note 30) (62,222} (17,778}
Total ‘ 80,000 62,222

Long-term loan liabilities stated as at 31 December 2011 in the amount of HRK
80,000 thousand relate to long-term loan granted by HBOR. On 23 December 2010, the
company concluded long-term loan agreement No. 5710004425 with HBOR in the
amount of HRK 80,000 thousand and with maturity on 30 September 2013. Collaterals
were pledge rights over nine properties in the ownership of the company. On 28 July
2011 the company concluded long-term agreement No. 5710005709 with HBOR in the
E amount of HRK 80,000 thousand and with maturity on 30 June 2014, Collaterals were
pledge rights over nine properties in the ownership of the company.
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Below is shown loan maturity by years:

Rate
Creditor Repayment  Number amount Maturity 2012* Maturity 2013 Maturity 2014
mode of rates HRK "000 HRK 000 HRIC 000 HRK 000
PBZ d.d. /
HBOR quarterly 9 8,889 35,555 26,667 0
PBZ d.d. /
HBOR quarterly 9 8,889 26,667 35,555 17,778
Total - 62,222 62,222 17,778

*current maturity of long-term loan (note 30 to the financial statements)

Agreed interest rates on loans are MFRH treasury bills increased by 2.5% to 3.5%.
The Company received in 2011 state support of small value through stimulating an
interest rate that is lower than referent interest rates in an amount of HRK 308

thousand,

27. Provisions

Provisions are shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK '000 HRK 000
Severance payments 3,375 3,269
Jubilee awards 8,737 9,013
Initiated court disputes 2,085 2,250
Total 14,197 14,532
/i/ Provisions for severance payments are shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION Amount
HRK '000
Balance at 1 January 2011 3,269
New provistons in 2011 106
Balance at 31 December 2011 3,375

/ii/ Provisions for jubilee awards are shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION Amount

HRK "000
Balance at 1 January 2011 9,013
New provisions in 2011 928
Used provisions in 2011 (1,204)
8,737

Balance at 31 December 2011
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/iii/ Provisions for initiated court disputes are show as follows:

DESCRIPTION Amount

HRK 000
Balance at 1 January 2011 2,250
Used provisions in 2011 {165)
Balance at 31 December 2011 ) 2,085

28. Trade payables

Trade payables are shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK '000 HRK '000
Domestic trade payables 227,138 255,468
Foreign trade payables 101,802 77,229
Mon-invoiced goods and services 2,385 2,226
Total 331,325 334,923
Maturity structure of trade payables is shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 Undue Due up to 30 days
HRK "000 HRI '000 HRK 000
Pomestic trade payables 227,138 226,959 179
Foreign trade payables 104,802 101,765 37
Non-invoiced goods and services 2,385 2,385 0
Total 331,325 331,109 216
29, Liabilities to related companies
Liabilities to related companies are shown as follows:
DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK 000 HRK 000
Restaurant Petrokemija d.o.o., Kutina {note 28) 3,285 3,224
Petrokemija d.o.0., Novi Sad 102 1,198
Petrokemija d.0,0., Novo Mesto 106 98
Tota! 3,493 4,520
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30. Liabilities to banks and other fiharjcial institutions

Liabilities to banks and other financial institutions

DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK 000 HRX '000
Domestic bank loans 233,500 292,240
Other loans 12,000 44,000
Current portion of long-term liabilities (note 26} 62,222 17,778
Total : 307,722 354,018
Below is shown review of loan liabilities per currency:.
DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK '000 HRK ‘000

Bank loans in EUR 0 5,240

Bank loans in HRK 233,500 287,000

Total bank loans 233,500 292,240

Other loan in HRK - 12,060 44,000

Current portion of long-term liabilities 62,222 17,778

Total 307,722 354,018

As at 31 December 2011 the Company has short-term revolving loans contracts

with the following commercial banks which were not completely utilized:

- HPB d.d. in the amount of HRK 50,000 thousand with utilization term on 1
February 2012 and maturity on 1 March 2012, Unutilized amount as at 31 December

2011 amounts to HRK 16,500 thousand.

. PBZ d.d. in the amount of HRK 67,000 thousand with utilization term on 30
June 2012 and maturity on 12 July 2012, Unutilized amount as at 31 December 2011

amounts to HRK 67,000 thousand.

31. Liabilities to emplovees.

Liabilities to employees are shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK "000 HRK '000
Net salaries 12,562 12,286
Other reimbursements to employees 1,052 1,043
Total 13,614 13,329
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32. Liabilities to State and other institutions

DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK '000 HRK 000
Taxes and contributions from sataries and wages 4,702 4,493
Taxes and contributions on salaries and wages 2,985 2,903
Customs and other charges 1,550 251
Forest contribution 356 214
Other liabilities for taxes and contributions 318 312
Total 9,921 8,173

33. Liabilities for securities

Liabilities for securities stated as at 31 December 2011 in the amount of HRK

81,176 thousand (31 December 2010: HRK 22,125 thousand) relate to liabilities for
issued commercial bills in 2011 (15th and 16th tranche with maturity on 2 May and 7
September 2012).

34, Prepayment liabilities

Prepayment liabilities stated as at 31 December 2011 in the amount of HRK
25,991 thousand (31 December 2010: HRK 56,326 thousand) relate to received
prepayments from foreign customers for the Company’s products.

35. Qther short-term liabilities
Other short-term liabilities are shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 31 bec 2011 31 Dec 210
HRK ‘000 " HRK 000
- Interests and fees 10,792 3,155
Other non-specified liabilities 18 19
Total 10,810 3,174

36. Accrued expenses and deferred income

Accrued expenses stated in the Balance sheet as at 31 December 2011 in the
amount of HRK 3,463 thousand (31 December 2010: HRK 3,434 thousand) relate to

incalculated costs for unused vacations for 2011,

37. Off-balance sheet records

Off-balance sheet records are shown as follows:

DESCRIPTION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRK 000 HRK '00G
Borrowed material, raw material and packages in the warehouse 27 116
Borrowed goods in the warehouse 0 19,986
Given guarantees 185 5
Given bilis 50 50
Given blank honds 186,200 121,000
Total _ 186,462 141,203
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38.  Related party transactions

The party is related with the subject when directly or indirectly through cne or
more mediator’s controls, is controlled by or is under a joint control by the subject or
has a share portion in a subject which gives it an influence over the subject and has a
joint control over the subject. The total amount of transactions with related parties,
receivables and liabilities at the end of the year as well as related expense and income
for 2011 and 2010 are shown as follows:

/i/ Transactions with subsidiaries:

31 Dec 2010 31 Dec 2010
DESCRIPTION HRK ‘000 HRK '000
Receivables for payment of profit
petrokemija d.o.0., Novi Sad 4,617
Total 4,617
Trade payables
Restaurant Petrokemija d.o.o., Kutina 3,285 3,224
Petrokemija d.0.0., Novi Sad 102 1,198
Petrokemija d.0.0., Novo Mesto 106 98
Total 3,493 4,520
2011 2010
DESCRIPTION HRK "060 HRK ‘000
Operating income
Restaurant Petrokemija d.0.0., Kutina 95 204
Petrokemija d.0.0., Novi Sad 74,511 49,379
Total 74,6006 49,583
Financial income
Restaurant Petrokemija d.o.0., Kutina . 0 3
Petrokemija d.0.0., Novi Sad 30 1,684
Petrokemija d.0.0., Novo Mesto 0 12
Total 30 1,699
2011 2010
DESCRIPTION HRK 000 HRK ‘000
Qperating expenses
Restaurant Petrokemija d.o.o., Kutina 531 377
Petrokemija d.o.0., Novi Sad 364 767
Petrokemija d.c.0., Novo Mesto 365 4,446
Total 1,260 5,590
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2011 2010

DESCRIPTION HRK 000 HRK '000
Financial expenses
Restaurant Petrokemija d.o.0., Kutina 202 261
Petrokemija d.o.0., Novi Sad 21 88
Petrokemija d.0.0., Novo Mesto 4 11
Total 227 360

/ii/ Transactions with associates:
31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010

DESCRIPTION HRK '000 HRK 000
Trade payables
Luka Sibenik d.o.0., Sibenik 1,882 5,078
Total 1,882 5,078
Liabilities for borrowings
Luka $ibenik d.o.0., Sibenik 2,000 2,000
Total 2,000 2,000

2011 2010
. DESCRIPTION HRK '000 HRK 000

Operating expenses
Luka $ibenik d.o.o., Sibenik 20,629 22,606
Total 20,629 22,606
Financial expenses
Luka Sibenik d.0.0., Sibenik 210 192
Total 210 192

39, Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Management Board that makes strategic
decisions. For the managing purposes the Company is organized into business units
related to products, and has six segments as follows:

1. Manufacture of fertilizers

2. Production of soot

3. Manufacture of clay

4. Liquid fertilizers, software and services
5. Maintenance

6. Pallets production
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Results for each production segments are shown as follows:

[ncome fo_rgsegment Expenses for segment B Result for segment
E DESCRIPTION 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
HRK 000 HRK 000 HRK '000 HRK "000 HRK 000 HRK 000
E : Production of fertitizers 2,927,396 2,248,522 {2,813,864) {2,380,309) 113,532 (131,787)
. Praduction of soot 263 342 (3,145) {7,254) (2,882) {6,912)
: production of clay 40,345 39,7585 {40,617} (39,935} 272) (180}
I ' Liquid fertilizers, software and
T services 23,680 19,166 {22,730} {18,154} 950 1,012
’ Maintenance 78,603 70,895 (81,790} {69,043) (3,187) 1,852
Preduction of pallets 7,626 8,016 (7,942) {8,107 (316} {31)
l TOTAL 3,077,913 2,?@96 {2,970,088) (2,522,802) 107,825 {136,106}
l 40. Financial instruments and risk management

The Company is exposed through its operations to the following financial risks:

« Credit risk

« Fair value or cash flow interest rate risk
« Foreign exchange risk

« Other market price risk

« Liquidity risk

Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital so as to ensure business continuity, maximizing
the return to shareholders through the optimization of the balances of debt and equity.

Company's capitat structure consists of debt, which includeé loans and
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and equity, which includes the subscribed capital
and loss carried forward.’

The ratio of net debt and equity (the coefficient of financing) is shown as

follows:
31 Dec
DESCRIPTION 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRI 000 HRK '000

Liabilities from borrowings, loans and provisions 401,919 430,772

Liabilities from issued securities 81,176 22,125

Trade payables and other liabilities 398,617 423,879

Total : 881,712 876,776

o Less: Cash and cash equivalents 7,355 21,339
i' ) Net debt 874,357 855,437
Equity* 765,110 657,285

Ratio of debt and equity 1.14 1.30

*Equity includes alt capital of the Company.
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Categories of financial instruments

DESCRIP?ION 31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
HRX '000 HRK ‘000
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 10,759 12,798
Other long-term financiat assets 11,303 18,202
Short-term receivables from related companies and customers 4,617 ¢
Other short-term financial assets 20,211 3,548
Other short-term receivables 190,584 205,176
Cash at bank and in hand ‘ - 7,355 21,339
Financia! assets o 244,829 261,063
Liabilities from toans and credits 387,722 416,240
Liabilities from issued securities 81,176 22,125
Liabilities to related companies 3,493 4,520
Trade payables - unrelated companies 331,325 334,923
QOther Habilities 60,336 81,002
Financial liabilities 864,052 858,810

N1 Lo

Financial risk managéement

The Company is exposed to the international market, respectively the Company
is subject to the impact of price changes of major raw materials in the worldwide
market, which depend on the movement of exchange rates of foreign currencies, and is
significantly exposed to exchange rate differences.

Financial risk includes market risk (including also foreign exchange risk and price risk),
credit risk, tquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. :

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of not meeting contractuat obligations of other
parties that will produce a financial loss of the Company. The Company has adopted a
policy under which it operates only with creditworthy parties capable of contracting,
providing the extra security needed to initigate the risk of financial loss due to faiture
to meet contractual obligations. Company's credit exposure and position of other parties
are continuously tracked, and the total amount of transactions concluded is divided
between approved parties.

Trade receivables related to the large number of customers allocated on
different geographical areas. Continuous evaluation of receivables is conducted based
on the financial position of customers and, where appropriate, receivables insurance
guarantee or some other collateral is obtained.

The Company has no significant credit risk exposure to any contracting party or
group of parties with similar characteristics. Credit risk of liquidity assets and derivative
financial instruments is limited, because the other contracting parties are hanks with
high credit ratings, which are defined by international agencies to determine credit
risk.
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Interest risk

ST Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
vt due to changes in market interest rate compared to interest rates that are applied to
- financial mstruments Cash flow risk is risk of possible changes of interest cost of a
ﬁnanc;al mstrument over the time.

k

' Most ofgthe debt on which interest is paid are agreed with the variable mterest
rate Risk is managed by maintaining a suitable combination between fixed and
changeabte interest rates on borrowings. The Company, at this point is not protected
from these nsks.

Forergn exchange risk

.0+ The Company is exposed to exchange rate risk during purchase and taking of
';_';g_Loans denominated in other currencies, and at contract defined prices of raw materials
related to foreign currency. Currencies subject to risks are primarity EUR and USD. The
. Company is not currently protected from this risk.

: Net carrying value of financial assets and liabilities of the Company denominated
in foreign currencies at the reporting date is as follows:

Liabilities Assets
Description 2011 2010 *2011 2010
HRK 000 HRK ‘000 HRK 000 HRK 000
EUR 60,735 71,433 13,303 36,382
usp 66,619 80,476 140 322
Other 37 20 19 263
Total 127,391 151,929 13,562 36,967

Market risk

The company operates in the Croatian and international markets. Management
determines the prices of their products and services, separately for domestic and
international markets.

Company’s activities expose the Company to financial risks, primarily due to
changes in exchange rates (see note Foreign exchange risk), interest rates and change
in price of raw materials in the world market.
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iLiquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to do its financial

L -~ 'obligations to otber contracting party.

{ The Comfpany manages liquidity risk by maintaining appropriate reserves, bank
assets and borrowed funds reserves, and provided continuous monitoring of actual cash
tows and compatring terms of maturity of financial assets and liabilities.

.‘._"_:;::-. Lo i
_' - Profit for the year

i
i

in 2011 lihe Company realized profit in the amount of HRK 107,825 thousand,

e -Whi{e in 2010 the Company realized consolidated loss in the amount of HRK 136,106

thousand. Improvement of the financial result in 2011 is the result of, in most part
faster growth in’operating income (30.2%) with regard to growth in operating expenses
(18,7%). Along with that, the most significant influence is result of increase in sale
prices, using the favourable market situation, market selection and adjusting sales
assortment to the market requirements. The domestic market income increased in 2011
for 18,5%, while the export income increased for 37,6%, which was the key factor of
improvement of operating result.

Operating expenses also significantly increased due to increase in raw materials
prices on global market and gas prices on domestic market. As the result of the
methodology of calculation of purchase price of natural gas, and under the influence of
increased prices of petroleum products on Mediterranean and exchange rate of USD, the
largest increase in raw material was realized with natural gas.

Mentioned facts indicate that there has been a positive balancing in input and
output prices in 2011, resulting in reduction of risks from unpredictable negative
influence of potential new wave of global crisis.

v DISPUTES AND CONTIGENT LIABILITIES

Based on data obtained from the legal department of the Company, there are
several court disputes initiated against the Company. In accordance with professional
legal advice, believing that the court decision will be unfavourable; the Company
formed corresponding reserves as stated in the note 27 to the financial statements,

\' QUALITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

With the objective to meet requirements and expectations of its buyers and all
interested parties, The Management Board of the Company reached Quality and
Environment Policy.

Quality Management System has been adjusted to requirements of 150 9001:2008
norm what is confirmed by the certificate of authorized company Lloyd's Register
Quality Assurance. Environment Management System has been adjusted to requirements
of 1SO 14001:2004 norm which is also confirmed by the certificate. The aforementioned
certificates prove the orientation and a possibility for competitiveness in the world
market.
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The Company started to build the environment protection system in early 1970
which has been improved and updated ever since, By issuing the 1SO norm the system is
adjusted to pertaining requirements and was established as the Environment
Management System. Activities in the field of environment protection are implemented
through a documented system of organizational structure from the Management Board
to every single :empioyee, all with the help of Expert services.

|
The EMS improvement .is implemented under adopted programs with the
- objective to sto’p and decrease potlution of environment and meet legal regulations.

The air quabty is monitored by measuring the concentration of 7 pollutions on 6

”"'-'--;_measurement stations in the town of:Kutina. As the result of taking environment

- protection measures, the Company conistantly tries to improve the quality of waste

~ waters and air:in towns. Particular care is dedicated to technological waste through
-1 selective collection, use of valuable qualities or controlled disposal. With the aim to

" reach as efficient activities in the environment protection system as possible, the

-+ Company cooperates with expert and scientific institutions. Reports are regularly given

to the bodies of the State Administration and the public on the influence of the
Company's activities to the environment,

Vi EVENTS AFTER THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET / FINANCIAL POSITION
STATEMENT DATE

After the balance sheet/Statement of financial position date there were no
significant events that could have the influence on the financial statements for the year
2011, which should be, consequently disclosed.

Vil APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were adopted and approved for issuance by the
Management Board on 13 February 2012,

For the Management Board of Peﬁy‘e ija d.d.,
Josip Jagust, president / / Y,
Antonija Perosevi¢ - Galovi¢, meimbe ‘4/ |
= 7
Nenad Marinovic, member( ’?V/VC) |

Tomislav Seletkovi¢, member

PETROKEMIJA d.d. 7 *; Ei
Aleja Vukovar 4 KUTH Nr\ H*T-J‘!‘ Kavar 4 (ﬁé‘\
44320 Kutina e e e

Republic of Croatia
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MANAGEMENT BOARD
Kutina 16 March 2012

Report on Company Status as of 31 December 2011

Dear shareholders!

It is my pleasure to address you again after areR&trokemija, Plc., successful business year.
In 2011, we made significant progress in the ecaogosition of our Company through the
joint efforts of all employees and Supervisory a@hagement Boards. In doing so, compared
to 2010, we made a significant progress shown byymadicators of business performance,
which can be concisely explained as a result cémae growth and cost control. Unfortunately,
we are still far from permanent stability and swscef the Company that all of us expect - you
as shareholders, we as the Board, all employeestiokemija, Plc. and the wider community.

The market environment in 2011 was extremely dyosaifferent trends were also present in
the global environment: some regions such as tBe ¢howed clear signs of emerging from
the crisis, and some closer to us, as a kind appery of the European Union and the Middle
East, showed all the interdependence of geopdliecesions and market risks. Our openness to
the world market was also showing its good anddiaels in 2011. During the year, prices of
raw materials and finished products kept rising fatlthg. It took a lot of effort and skill to

use the positive wave and avoid the pitfalls ofkeiand exchange rate risks.

Our most significant, domestic market, showed ghslincrease in 2011. However, the impact
of unusually dry-weather year had an unusually pumced effect on the structure and
dynamics of demand for fertilizers in the domestirket and in the region. Apart from change
in the usual time of sowing and top dressing ofatercrops, the much more significant
negative effects were those of reduced crop, waittangered the economic position of many
farmers in 2012.

The price of natural gas as our most importantmeaterial had grown as a reflection of the
rising prices of petroleum products in the Medaeran, or the specific features of natural gas
pricing on the Croatian market. The average anpuie¢ of gas increased by 30% in 2011 and
the growth trend has continued under the influesfcal price growth in the first quarter of
2012. The prices of other basic raw materials im®ee, too while there was also a rise in
prices of fertilizers in the world market, which svéhe result of a new wave of growth in food
prices worldwide.

A positive shift in relation to the 2010 gives ris¢o optimism — with approximately the
same level of production, domestic fertilizers saeincreased by 5.3%, savings were made
in the part of the costs which the Company had inflence on. After a loss of HRK 136.1



million in 2010, in 2011, we reported a profit of 07.8 million kuna, which is the
improvement of the result by 243.9 million kuna.

The growth of revenues and expenditures was thdt i@sinflationary trends of input-output
prices and for the smaller part of the portfoli@eges - smaller share of the sale of CAN, and
higher of NPK fertilizer. Price fluctuations of rawaterials and finished products, which were
passed on from the world market, had an impactrime pelations in the domestic market.
Total actual income was HRK 2969.6 million and toteexpenditures HRK 2861.8 million.
Total revenue increased by 29.6% (in the domesdiket, +18.5%, +37.6% in exports), while
expenditures increased by 17.9% on the previous yea

Petrokemija, Plc. Kutina conducted the consoligdatibfinancial statements for the parent
company Petrokemija, Plc., Kutina and subsidiasikgh are in her 100%-ownership —
Restoran Petrokemija, Ltd., Kutina, Petrokemijal.] Novi Sad and Petrokemija, Ltd., Novo
Mesto and the consolidated result is shown foPeokemija Group. All financial statements
of the Petrokemija Group for the business year 20dre confirmed, revised and made public
in accordance with International Financial RepagrtBtandards approved for use in Republic of
Croatia.

At the level of Petrokemija Group the actual comaikd total revenues were HRK 2973.0
million and total expenditures HRK 2866.5 millicgg that the profit in 2011. was 106.5

million kuna.

In 2011, the share of Petrokemija, Plc. was tramethe Zagreb Stock Exchange. Also,
commercial papers were traded in the same markehwye released with Privredna Banka
Plc. Zagreb as an agent and dealer of issues.hHrne price ranged under the influence of
global financial flows, the specific characteristaf the Croatian securities market and actual
quarterly financial results of the Company. Onlds day of trading in 2010, the share price
of Petrokemija, Plc was 165.44 kuna and on thedagtof 2011 it was HRK 193.31. In 2011,
the share value increased by 16.8% and achievadraral turnover of around 93.6 million
kuna.

In accordance with the commitment to establish Bigimndards of transparency in business,
Petrokemija, Plc. has since 2007 had The Code gdatate Governance of the Zagreb Stock
Exchange in place, which was continued in 2011c&Beptember 2011, the Code of Business
Conduct of Petrokemija, Plc. has been adoptedraptemented and a survey of organizational
climate and job satisfaction among employees wadwtted for the first time.

In 2011, Petrokemija, Plc. did not significantlyealthe global organizational structure of the
Company, but the the needs of the process in otiganizational units was made by
organizational adjustments and reallocation of woskrom the plants that were at a standstill.
In June 2011, two new members of Petrokemija, Rémagement Board were appointed, and
a mandate was extended for the third one for andiinee years. Also, in one part of the
middle and lower management some appropriate ckamgee made. In the second part of the
management structure, which met the requirememntshenoperational requirements of the
Board, there were no significant changes. Durinl26he number of employees was reduced
by 45 workers or 1.9%. Meanwhile, personnel castseiased over the previous year by 7.8%.
This is the result of wages return to the levebbetheir reduction, which was the subject of
the agreement of the Management Board and the WWidaions on time-limited lowering of
wages as a measure of consolidation of the Comipasiypess in 2010.

The Petrokemija product range still includes changade due to a temporary and partial halt
of production at some plants. Mineral fertilizers dominant, and their structure (NPK



fertilizer) is modified to suit the changed raw evél base and sources of raw materials after
the stopping of sulfuric and phosphoric acid andmffom the second half of 2009.
Production with purchased MAP and DAP proved t@lmeore cost-favorable alternative at the
current market price. Production of carbon blagoatopped since the second half of 2009
due to market reasons, so that clay-based prodiagis] fertilizers and chemicals have a share
of less than 2.2% of the business potential irotherall business. Mineral fertilizers employ
most of the production facilities and employees detkrmine the overall business results.

Quality Management System according to ISO 900820@ Environmental Management
System according to ISO 14001:2004 were furtheekbped, for which there are adequate
verified recordsln 2011, as much as 44.1 million dollars were invesd in plant
modernization and environmental investmentWith increased environmental requirements,
energy and technological efficiency, we are facét e need for more intensive investment
in the current and following years. On the othardhdinancial constraints and the relatively
high indebtedness make us highly cautious andtsetio new investments. The selection of
priorities and determining the dynamics of investtria accordance with the upcoming
Croatian joining the EU, suggests the search far smurces and forms of financing.

The sales of mineral fertilizers were about 113fu#and tons, which is 0.6% less than the
actual sales in 2010. Out of the total sales, 869,tones (5.3% more than in 2010) were sold
in the domestic market and the rest was exportee.dbmestic market had 30.9% share in
total fertilizer sales, which is approximately 1.786re than the total share in 2010.

Since mid 2009, through Privredna Banka Zagremasgant and dealers of the issues,
Petrokemija has been implementing a program ofrigddRK 100 million in commercial

papers in order to secure short-term sources dfingcapital. In 2011, obligations on
commercial bils were properly executed. The lactwofking capital was pronounced in 2010
due to a loss, and in 2011 it was offset by posiperformance. However, growth in input-
output price and the total volume of financial sactions require a greater level of engagement
of permanent working capital. On 31 December 2@id total current assets amounted to 879,
and total current liabilities to 787 000 000 kuwajch means that the net working capital was
92 million in the positive. Long-term liabilitiesnd31 December 2011 were 94 million, which
are connected with a long-term loan for workingit@nd long-term provisions.

Fertilizer industry association with changes in Mdood markets and energy market, open
certain risk in prediction of business operation2012 and the next few years. Constant
changes in oil prices and food prices on world reerkreate new relations of supply and
demand, and thus the price of fertilizer in theufat

At the turn of 2011/2012 the following business rks are observed:

» During 2011, prices of petroleum products onwioeld market grew and continuing political
instability in countries of North Africa since tlfiest quarter of 2011 indicates a possible
further rise in oil prices. In this context, thegerof gas on the Croatian market should be
considered, the price of heating oil and oil feedstfor carbon black. Consequently, the prices
of other raw materials are uncertain, too.

» High dependence of business results on the mavieofi@rices of fertilizers and raw
materials for their production in the world markiie exchange rate against USD and EUR
and their correlation (currency risk).

* A new contract for the supply of gas was conatbdéh INA, Plc. Zagreb, i.e. their company



Prirodni plin, Ltd. for two years. The ManagemeioiaBd estimate is that during 2012 and 2013
an adequate market mechanism in the trading ofalagas in Croatia will be built.

* In the fourth quarter of 2011, there was a falbales prices of fertilizers in the world market,
and the level and duration of the price wave in2@1very difficult to assess.

« Liquidity risk and high cost of working capitaleastill present due to high levels of
indebtedness and high interest rates in Croatia.

* Movements of prices of agricultural productstock exchanges show the volatility of these
prices in 2011, which creates risks in terms oftp@seffects in agriculture, and indirectly in
the sale of fertilizers.

* Prices of sea and railway transportation are alsignificant risk in terms of increase of raw
material prices and increasing costs of fertilgeld to distant markets.

« Environmental requirements for reducing emissiamduding reducing greenhouse gas
emissions have caused a commitment of high invegtmesnvironmental protection in the
next period.

With hardly predictable level of price of basic ravaterials - phosphate, chloride, MAP, DAP
and sulfur, one of the major long-term risk lieghie fact of change of price in the European
gas market. A part of privileged customers in theaflan gas market has been protected from
the rising prices of gas since September 2011 dicesion of the Croatian Government.
Petrokemija, Plc. is not covered by these measwigish reflects negatively on its financial
performance.

Business Plan 2012 predicts further growth in togaénues and expenses and a profit of 20.7
million kuna, which is a very ambitious strateglgextive of the Management Board and all
employees. An estimate of business in the followiegrs is very difficult to make at the
moment because of these numerous unexpected ingatiteancial performance, and
especially the effects of the actual gas markéténRepublic of Croatia.

Assessing the risks in business of the subsidiari@®12, we estimate that these companies do
not have a significant impact on the result of &lemija Group due to their small share in
overall business performance.

RestoranPetrokemija, Ltd., Kutina is in their operations mainly oriented to provaigering
service to employees of Petrokemija and has stgi#eating conditions and relatively low
exposure to market risks.

The subsidiaryetrokemija, Ltd., Novi Sadoperates in the Serbian market and has no
significant share in the total amount in this markaven its stable supplier of good quality
products and proven tradition, which is the pacempany Petrokemija, Plc. Kutina, there are
no significant market risks estimated in the supig sale of fertilizers in 2012.

The subsidiary Petrokemija, Ltd. Novo Mesto hasity tb implement the REACH program
activities, in accordance with EU standards, wihsctully funded by Petrokemija, Plc. and has
no specific business risks, which would not bearglion the parent company Petrokemija, Plc.

All other data, which under the provisions of then@panies Act must be an integral part of the
annual reports on the state of the Company, cdaurel in the publicly released annual report
for 2011, prescribed financial statements and atgliteport, both for Petrokemija, Plc. and
for the Petrokemija Group.

Finally, I would like to thank the Supervisory Bdaworkers’ unions and Workers’ Council

for good cooperation and to all shareholders amtheis for the trust they had in us in the past
year. We are encouraged by the positive effectienfand for fertilizers in the world market in
the current spring season, but but also worriethbyncrease in energy prices. Limited



demand on the Croatian market is temporary andyttas we will invest maximum effort to
meet the needs of each of our customers. Theyatalgxport finished products to the
choosiest European and world markets, gives us tigpaeve are all together capable to meet
the challenges set by the future business. We pesitive financial result as our strategic goal
and we will make maximum efforts towards achieuimgt goal.

Behind us is the year in which we focused on oweing the many uncertainties and
challenges in the business. We entered the ye& Q& optimism, although aware that the
year ahead was one in which again we could exjpgafisant challenges from the immediate
and wider surroundings. The surroundings in whighgotentials of our Company must
persistently be argued again - expert workers aadlagement, technological potential of
production plants and logistics, market reputabaiit over the decades of business with
customers, suppliers and banks which support uscalfeot provide stable forecasts due to
price fluctuations in the fourth quarter and attilna of the current year, but we can argue that
the end of the recession and long-term supply sfaj@aeasonable prices is the solution to most
of the problems that we encounter today. From goushareholders, we expect the trust and
support in the measures that the Management isga&iovercome the challenging year 2012.

Josip Jagust

Chairman of Petrokemija
Management Board



SUPERVISORY BOARD
Kutina 29 March 2012

In line with Article 263, Paragraph 3 and Article(c. of Companies Act, the Supervisory
Board of Petrokemija Plc., Kutina, at its fourthetieg held on 29 March 2012 adopted as
follows:

Report of the Supervisory Board
to General Assembly of Petrokemija, Plc. for 2011

. As many as 14 meetings of the Supervisory BoaRktrokemija Plc. (hereinafter referred
to as the Supervisory Board) were held in 2011hatkvmatters related to business provided
by the law and the Articles of Association werecdssed.

II. Composition of the Supervisory Board
In 2011, there were changes in the compositioh®fSupervisory Board as follows:

- On 16 March 2011, Ivica L@arevic's mandate expired.

- On 23 February 2011, Croatian Privatization Fungbaged Jozo Bilobrk as SB
member for a four-year term.

- On 10 March 2011, the General Assembly Memberskevdva Galé, Vikica PleSe,
Goran Kralj, Mijo Sepak and Mario Radakéwnd appointed Goran Kralj, Mario
Radakow, Mijo Sepak, Zlatan Kulji§ and Miroslav Golub aB Biembers.

- On 10 March 2011, the General Assembly gave Zédjlanis a new mandate as SB
member from 29.03.2011 to 28.03.2015.

- At the Supervisory Board meeting on 29 March 2@ljko Klaus was elected
chairman and Mijo Sepak vice chairman of Superyi@ward.

On 31 December 2011, Supervisory Board had theviaiig members:

Zeljko Klaus, chairman,
Mijo Sepak, vice chairman,
Goran Kralj, member,
Mario Radakowi, member,
Zlatan Kuljis, member,
Miroslav Golub, member
Jozo Bilobrk, member,
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8. IvanCar, member,
9. Dragutin Vajnaht, member.

Until the adoption of this Report the only changeswivario Radakoxls resignation as
member of the Supervisory Board on 27 January 2012.

[I1. Inthe reporting period, the Supervisory Boardgrened its tasks and made decisions in
line with their competence defined by the law amel Articles of Association.

Through written and oral reports of the ManageniBardrd, the Supervisory Board was
regularly informed about business policies, busin#ans, actual operating results of
Petrokemija, Plc. and other important isssiesh as:

The issue of gas supply,

Prices of mineral fertilizers,

Annual Report for 2010,

Audit Report,

Preparing for the extraordinary and regular Gengsaembly,

Business Report — January to March 2011,

Selection of Board Members,

Business Report — January to June 2011,

Business Report — January to September 2011,

Business Plan for 2012,

Various approvals for the establishment of a lierreal estate and stocks of mineral
fertilizers for additional borrowing,

Liabilities and debt of the Company,

Anti-corruption program for the 2011 - 2012 peratt report on the implementation of
anti-corruption measures on a quarterly basis,

Establishment of the Audit Commission and Commis$ow Appointments and
Remuneration

Development of business information system, orgdional structure of the Company,
The development of Luka Sibenik (Port of Sibenikyl. concept.

The Supervisory Board's conclusion was that thedgdament Board acted in accordance with
law and the Articles of Association.

V. The Supervisory Board reviewed the reports oftirditors, BDO Croatia d.o.o., J.F.
Kennedyja, 6b, Zagreb, who examined the annuahdilsh statements of Petrokemija, Plc. for
the year ended on 31 December 2011 and acceptaith®r's report.

In their report, the independent auditors inforrttesel Supervisory Board of the Company's
accounting policies, and stated that they did mat $ignificant deficiencies in internal control
and accounting procedures. The independent awutidtarot express disagreement with the
Board in assessing the risk analysis and posgilglfor abuse analyses.

V. The Supervisory Board reviewed the annual firdrstatements for 2011, which were
compiled by the Management Board, as follows:

- Annual Financial report for 2011 for Petrokemipdg.

- Consolidated Financial Statement for 2011 fordk&mija Group.



The Supervisory Board found that the financial repwere prepared in accordance with the
business records and properly and accurately shewrbperty and business status of
Petrokemija, Plc.

The Supervisory Board approved the financial repand thus in accordance with Art. 300.d.

of the Companies Act, these reports are considestablished.

An integral part of the annual financial statemdatghe year ended on 31 December 2011 and
to which the aforesaid approval of the Superviddogrd relates to, are:

For Petrokemija, Plc.:

Balance Sheet,

Profit and loss Account

Notes to Financial Statements,

Statement on Cash Flow,

Statement on Changes in Equity,

Auditors' Report,

Annual Report,

Management Report on the State of the Company,
Corporate Governance Code - an annual survey.
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For Petrokemija Group:

Balance Sheet,

Profit and loss Account

Notes to Financial Statements,
Statement on Cash Flow,
Statement on Changes in Equity,
Auditors' Report,

Annual Report

Nook,rwhE

VI. Use of actual profit of 2011

With regard to the actual profit of Petrokemijagc.Rh 2011 in the amount of HRK
107,825,181.80, the proposal of the Management Board to fullycte the profit to cover the
loss carried forward from 2009, is accepted.

VII. Evaluation of the overall business performanctefCompany

The Supervisory Board finds that the operationthefCompany in 2011, generally had a
positive developments as compared to the year Z&xb@luction and sales were at about the
planned level, and the financial effects were agrsibly more favorable than the previous
year or than planned. Unfortunately, no lastingtpasfinancial results can bee seen which are
still significantly threatened by unfavorable cdrahs in the immediate and wider environment
of the Company.

VIIl. Evaluation of the work of Management Board



The Supervisory Board evaluates that the work @Bbard in 2011 was successful because,
owing to their expertise and dedication they realithe most of their strategic objectives in
very complex business conditions. This is primatrlye for the achievement of positive
financial results, above the planned levels. Anarle level of social sensitivity was also
achieved, which was evident through the presemaifemployment and increase of wages to
a level where they had been before the 10% redusti@010. Proper co-operation with trade
unions and workers' council resulted in mutual agrent and the signing of the Annex to the
Collective Agreement and other activities that destate social sensitivity of the Company.

IX. Review of cooperation of the Supervisory Boaithwthe Management Board

The Supervisory Board evaluates the cooperation thee Company Management in 2011 as
correct and useful and in the interests of the Gompwith mutual appreciation and respect for
the law. All decisions made, with the results @& tote, were recorded in the minutes of the
Supervisory Board meetings.

X. Final evaluation of the Supervisory Board for 201

The Supervisory Board evaluates their work in tastperiod, in the given circumstances as
successful. Despite numerous changes in the cotigyosf the Supervisory Board, continuity
in their work was preserved and there was a ndileezontribution of each member to the
work of the Board with respect the laws in runnihg Company. It is estimated that the goals
of the Company at the annual level were achieved.

Xl. The Supervisory Board submits this report on supenv of business operations for 2011
to the General Assembly of Petrokemija, Plc. anmaposes the Assembly to adopt it.

Zeljko Klaus

Chairman of the Petrokemija
Supervisory Board



Petrokemija, Plc.
SUPERVISORY BOARD

Number : 3 /2012
Kutina, 29™March 2012

Based on Article 21 of Statute of PetrokemiLa, Plc. and Articles 300.c and 300.d of the Companies Act,
ata meeting No.___4 /2012 held on 29" March 2012 , the Supervisory Board of Petrokemija, PIc.
issued the following
DECISION
ON GRANTIG APPROVAL TO THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR 2011
I

After reviewing the audited annual financial statements, Supervisory Board of Petrokemija, Plc. grants
its approval for the annual financial statements of Petrokemija, Plc. for 2011 as prepared by the
Management Board of the Company.

By granting the above approval, the financial statements are considered to be confirmed by the
Management and Supervisory Board.

The Management and Supervisory Board will send information on thus confirmed financial statements
to the General Assembly.

The annual financial statements referred to in the agreement from point | are made up of:

« Balance

« Profit and Loss Account

« Cash Flow Statement

« Statement of Changes in Equity

* Notes to Financial Statements

« Petrokemija, Plc. Annual Report

« Petrokemija, Plc. Independent Auditor’s Report — BDO Croatia d.0.0. Zagreb

1
Balance sheet assets and liabilities are recorded in the amount of HRK 1,646,822,130.66.
The actual profit of business in 2011 amounts to HRK 107,825,181.80.

Reports from point Il are an annex to this Decision and are its integral part.

v

This Decision shall enter into force upon its adoption.

Chairman of the Supervisory Board:

/ Zeljko Klaus m.p. /



Petrokemija, Plc.
SUPERVISORY BOARD

Number : 4 /2012

Kutina, 29" March 2012

Based on Article 21 of Statute of Petrokemija, Plc. and Articles 300.c and 300.d of the Companies Act,
atameeting No. 4 /2012 held on 29 th March 2012 , the Supervisory Board of Petrokemija,
Plc. issued the following

DECISION
on use of profit from the year 2011

I
Acceptance of the proposal of Management Board that the actual operational profit for year 2011, in

the amount of HRK 107,825,181.80 is fully distributed to cover the loss carried forward from year
2009.

Thus established proposal to use the profit will be jointly addressed to the General Assembly by the
Company's Management Board and Supervisory Board.

This Decision shall enter into force upon its adoption.

Chairman of the Supervisory Board:

/ Zeliko Klaus m.p. /





